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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members,

vour Directors are pleased to present the 39" Annual Report along with Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The highlights of the financial results are as under:

Total Income
Profit before exceptional and extra-ordinary items and tax

Less: Provision for Diminution in value of investment
Provision for Non-Performing Assets

Profit/ {Loss) before Tax

Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Tax Adjustment for Earlier Years

Profitf (Loss) after Tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive [ncome for the year

DIVIDEND

Year ended
31.03.2020

7665.19
2138.16

(380.37)
(1071.10)
3589.63

436.00
3153.63
935.43
4039.06

{Rs. In lakhs)

Year ended
31.03.2019

1421517
1900.58

16.13
10,71.10
813,36

425.00
8.44
379.82
(5174.84)
{4794.92)

With a view to conserve resources for future business operations of the Company, your Directors do

not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Total income of the Company during the year was Rs. 7665.19 lakhs as against Rs, 14215.17 |akhs
in the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs. 3589.63 lakhs as against
Rs. 813.35 lakhs in the previous year. The profit after tax was Rs. 3153.63 lakhs as apainst Rs.

379.92 lakhs in the previous year.

NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in nature of business of the company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year, no amount is proposed to be transferred to the General Reserve.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

During the year Crishpark Vincom Limited ceased as Subsidiary of the Company on 14.02.2020.

The Company has one associate namely Kushagra Infrastructure Private Limiled,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing
salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary and associate companies is attached to

the financial statements of the Company.



Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the financial
statements of the Company, consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents and
separate audited accounts in respect of subsidiary are available on the website of the Company
www.sudhaapparels.com

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated
Financial Statements read with Accounting Standard AS-23 on Accounting for Investments in
Associates, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with Auditors’ Report form part of
this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Smt Savita Jindal Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Shri Mangat Ram Garg resigned as Whole-fime Director of the Company on 107 May, 2018,
however, he is continuing as Director of the Company. Shri Sunil Gautam has been appointed as
Whole-time Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from 1% June, 2019.

Mr. Rajesh Gupta has been appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 1 June, 2019.

Shri R.K. Banthia has resigned as Independent Director on 8" August, 201¢ due to his pre-
occupation and Dr. Roma Kumar was appointed as Independent Director for a period of five year
w.ef 8" August, 2019

Brief resume of Director who is propesed to be appointedire-appointed is furnished in the Notice of
Annual General Meeling.

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company are Shri Sunil Gautam, Whole-time Director, Shri Rajesh Gupta,
Company Secretary and Shri Arup Mitra, Chief Financial Officer.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year nine Board meetings were held. The details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out the Annual performance evaluation of its own, Board
Committees and Individual Directers pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board, after seeking inputs from all the
Directors on the basis of criteria such as Board composition and structures, effectiveness of Board
processes, information and functioning etc.

The performance of the Committees were evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of Commitiees,
effectiveness of Committee meetings.



The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the
individual Directars on the basis of the criteria such as contribution of the Individual Director to the
Board and Commitiee meetings.

Also in a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent Directors,
performance of the Beard as a whole and Chairman were evaluated, taking into account the view of
the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors. Performance evaluation of Independent
Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated,

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company's policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other matters provided in Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of the Directors' Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Adequate measures have been adopted by the Company to anticipate, plan and mitigate the
spectrum of risks it faces. The Company's business operations are exposed to financial risks
including Liguidity Risk etc.

The Board of the Company has approved the Risk management Policy of the Company and
authorized the Audit Committee to implement and monitor the risk management plan for the
Company and also identify and mitigate the various element of risks, if any, which in the apinion of
the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

As per the provisions of Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has in place
adequate internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements. Audit Committes
periodically reviews the adequacy of internal financial controls.

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses were ohserved.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state:

{i) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2020, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no material departures;

(ii) that the accounting policies selected and applied are consistent and the judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period,

(1} that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{iv) that the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2020 have been prepared on a
going concern basis;

(vi  that the internal financial controls laid down by the Board and being followed by the
Company are adequate and were operating effectively and

{vi}  that the proper systems, devised by Directors to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws, were adequate and operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Return in
prescribed form MGT-9 is annexed with this Report.



AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company as on 31% March, 2020 consists of Shri Vibhore Kaushik,
Chairman, Shri Mangat Ram Garg and Dr. Roma Kumar as its other members. The terms of
reference are in conformity with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and established the necessary vigil mechanism
far Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of the Company’'s Code of conduct, The said policy has been disclosed on the
Company's website under the web link
hitp: /fwww. sudhaapparels.comiSudhaWhistleBlowerPalicy. pdf.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the
implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on
CSR activities, which has been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the
Company's website under the web link http:/fwww. sudhaapparels.com/CSR%20Policy %20-
Sudha.pdf

The Annual Report on CSR activities in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure to this Report,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 186(11) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of Section 186 are not
applicable to any acguisition made by a non-banking financial company registered under Chapter
1B of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and whose principal business is acquisition of securities

(i.e. investment and lending activities). The Company has not given any guaraniee or provided any
security.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/ arrangementsitransactions entered into by the Company with the related parties
during the year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis.

All related party transactions are periodically placed before the Audit Gommittee for review and
approval.

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with
Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 are appended in Form AOC-2 as Annexure to
this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Corporate Governance Report along with Auditors’ Certificate regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance has been annexed as part of this Annual Report,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS5IS REFORT
A detailed analysis of your Company’s performance is discussed in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013



INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The GCempany has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee under Section 4 of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
year no complaint was filed before the said committee.

AUDITORS

M/s. Bidasaria & Associates, Chartered Accountanis were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a period of 5 years, at the AGM of the Company held on 28" September, 2017
M/s. Bidasaria & Associates resigned as auditors of the Company vide their letter dated 16"
September, 2019,

The Board thereafter, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held on
15" QOctober, 2019, appointed M/s. Kanodia Sanyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
(FRN 008396N) as Auditors of the Company to fil the casual vacancy in the office of statutory
auditors of the Company till the conclusion of ensuring Annual General meeting of the Company.
The appointment of M/s. Kanodia Sanyal & Asscciates Auditors was subsequently approved by the
members of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 20" December
2010,

The Company has received a letter from M/fs Kanodia Sanyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section
143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the Companies Act, 2013 and they are not disqualified from
appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Board of Directors has therefore proposed the appointment of M/s Kanodia Sanyal &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of
this AGM till the conclusion of 44" AGM, subject to approval of members of the Company.

The observations of Auditors are explained wherever necessary in the appropriate Notes on
Accounts. The Auditors Report does net contain any gualification, reservation or advarse remark,

COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Centre Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. $5-1 and SS-2 relating to 'Meelings of
the Board of Directors’ and 'General Meetings' respectively have been duly followed by the
Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appointed M/s Hemant Singh and Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, to
conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. The Secretarial Audit
Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is annexed herewith as an annexure to this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report contains the following qualification, observations or adverse remark:

The company did not comply with Regulation 295(1) of SEBI(lssue Of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 of implementing the bonus issue within two(2) manths from the
date of the meeting of its board of directors wherein the decision to announce the bonus issue was
taken subject to shareholders’ appraval,

Company's Reply:

The company was not able to comply with Regulation 285(1) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 relating to bonus issue within the prescribed time due
to non-receipt of trading approval from the Calcutta Stock Exchange.

B



ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

The Company has undertaken an audit for the financial year 2019-20 for all applicable compliances

as per Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued
thereunder.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been submitted to the stock exchanges within
prescribed time from the end of the financial year.

FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company is an NBFC — ND and not accepted any deposits during the year.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

In view of the business activities of the Company, the information relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company.

FARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company
iz attached as a part of this annual report.

The Non- Executive Directors are entitled to be paid by way of sitting fees for meetings of the Board
of Directors and Audit Committee. During the year ended 31st March, 2020 no remuneration was
paid to Non-Executive Directors in view of them having waived their entitlement to receive the sitting
fea.

The particulars of the employees who are covered by the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule
5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

a) Employed throughout the year Mil

b} Employed for part of the year Mil

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments, effecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred after the end of the financial year ended 31% March, 2020 and till the date of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board expresses its grateful appreciation of the assistance and co-operation received from
Central and State Governments, Banks and Shareholders.

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the devoted contribution
made by the employees and associates at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Gurugram Mangat Ram Garg
Dated: 24™ August, 2020 Chairman



Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

[Fursuant to clause {o) of sub-section (3 of section 124 of the Act and Rule 3 of the Companies (Corporate
Sccial Responsibility) Rules, 2014)

-

I, A brief cutline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

The Board of Directars, on recommendation of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committes framed a
Corporate Socigl  Responsibility  Policy  which  is  posted on the Company's  website
voonw sudhaspparels com. The Company proposes to adaopt projects or programmes under ong or more of
the activities as prescribed under Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, as recommended from fime
1o fime

2. The Composition of the CSR Committes,

The Company has a CSR Committee of Directers comprising of Shri Mangat Ram Garg, Chairman of the
Committee Shri Vibhore Kaushik and Or. Roma Kumar as its other members,

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years — Rs, 2588.25 Lakhs

4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cant of the amount as in item 3 above) —Rs, 51.92 Lakhs
5. Details of C3R spent during the financial year

{a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year - Rs. 5.00 Lakhs

(L} Amount unspent, if any —= Rs. 47.00 Lakhs

(¢y Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is defailed below

&. Reasons for not spending two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thergof on CSR.

The Company considers various proposals for carrying out CSR activities fo ensure that the confribufions
made by the Company are for deserving causes and are properly utilized, which has taken more fime than
gstimaled and hence the reguired amcunt was not spent during the year. The Company was still evalualing
various proposals at the year end,

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is
in campliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

We heraby declare thal implementation and menilering of the CSR pelicy are in compliance with CSR
objectives and policy of the Company.

Savita Jindal Mangat Ram Garg
Directar Chairman CSR Commitlee



5 (C)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year 2019-2020

(Amount in Es.}

Amount
) Amount
Projects or programs Amount the Cumulativ R
{1) Loeal area or other Outlay projects or e Difect ';r
Sr. No CSE Project or Sector in which the project is (2] Specify the State (Budget] programs | Expenditur throusk
s Activity identified covered and district where project or subheads e upto the o legm
Projects or programs programs :{1) Direct reporting nlgin
was undertaken, wise Expenditu period E
agency
o 2]
Overheads
Promoting education Throsgh
: : . Pramaoting education including Dehradun, B.C.
Ipecis ; ; ; 5,00, 500,000 5,00,000 ;
: ipsluding %‘pﬁm al Special education Uttarakhand 9a.a0e Jinal
coucation
Trust
Total CSR Spend 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000




FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31% March, 2020
[Pursuant 1o section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Ta,

The Members,

STABLE TRADING CO LTD
2/5, Sarat Bose Road,

Sukh Sagar Flat Mo, 84,
Koalkata-700020

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by STABLE TRADING CO LTD (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications
given 1o us and the representation made by the Management and considering the relaxation granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due o the spread of
the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020, generally complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place 10 the extent based on the management representation letter/ confirmation, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hersinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020, according to the provisions of: -

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

(iii}  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,

(iv]  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Owverseas Direet Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(w]  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ("SERIT Act™):-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations.
2015;



¢, The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requiremenis)
Regulations, 2018 {(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 — (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securties)
Regulations, 2008- (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period),

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client with respect
to issue of securities;

g, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2004 —
(Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 {(Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

{vi)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

a. Non-Banking Financial Company-Non Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit Taking
Company {(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and other relevant guidelines and circulars
issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to time and periodic reporting done by the
Company.

b. and other relevant guidelines and circulars issued by Reserve Bank of India from time 1o
time and periodic reporting's done by the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the Standards/ Regulations of the following:
(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The [nstitute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, as per our audit of records of the Company and as per the explanations
and clarifications given to us, the Company has complied wilth the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards ete, mentioned above,

We lurther report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,
Mon-Executive Director and Independent Directors,

Adequate notice was given 1o all directors 1o schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

The decisions of the Board were carried out through unanimous voles, no dissenting views of any
Gireetor was recorded in the minutes maintained by the Company.



We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and puidelines,

We further report that during the audit period there has not been any such activity having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines

e,

Disclaimer: N is te be noted that due to the prevailing nationwide pandemic scenario and unavoidable
work from home circumstances, our team could not follow the usual course of audit procedure which
includes physical verification of the requisite compliances. Chur opinion, as stated in the repart is based on
documents and information as made available by the Company via email.

Date: 24082020 For Hemant Singh & Associales
Place: Delhi Company Seeretaries

Hemant Kumar Singh
(Partner)

Membership MNo: FoO33
COP No : 6370

UDIN: FOOG033B000609306

Mote: The Company has waived off Dividend in respect of Redeemable Preference Shares held in
Crishpark Vincom Limited.

Note: This Report 15 1o be read with Annexure A, which Torms an integral part of this report.




Annexure A

The Members

STABLE TRADING CO LTD
2/5, Sarad Bose Road,

Sukh Sagar Flat Mo, BA,
Foolkata-T00020

Our report of even date is 1o be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of sccretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate o obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the
random test basis to ensure thal correct facts ave reflected in secretarial records, We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

lrd

. We have nol verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company,

4. Wherever reguired, we have oblained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of evems eie.

Ln

The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as 1o the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Drate: 24.08.2020 For Hemant Singh & Associates
Place: Delhi Company Secrelaries

Hemant Kumar Singh
(Partner)

Membership No: Fo33
COFP No : 6370

UDIN: FO06033B000609306



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Form ACC-1

[Pursuant to first provise to sub-section {3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules,
2014]
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associates Companies/
Joint Ventures

Fart “A" Subsidiaries:

. *E:N\ﬂ Particulars Name of Subsidiaries: |
: Feporing period for the subsidiary concernad
2 Feporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of therelavant financial year in case of foreign
! subsidiaries
| & Share Capital TR
j Reserves and Surplus TR

Total Assels

Total Liabilities TR
Imvesiments T |

Turnowver _"““m\_ N

a4

=

5]

7

&,

4. Profit before laxation g
1

L)

12

: Frovision for taxation | ~
. Profit after taxation
; Proposed Dividend |

R % of shargholding |
Motes:
1. Mames of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — Nil
2. Mames of subsidiaries which have been liquidated ar sald during the year = Nil

Part "B" Associates and Joint Ventures

Sr.oMo. | Particulars Mame of Associate
KUSHAGRA INFRASTRUCTURE
FRINATE LIMITED
1. Latest audited Balance Sheel Date 31.03.2020
2. Shares of Associate/Joinl Venlures held by the
= Company on the year end
- Mo, of Equity Shares 11,585,000
=Amount of investiment in Associatas/Jainl Venlure 1,05,99,6G50
- Extent of Halding (%) 0%
3. Description of how there is significant influence Sharehalding excaeding 20% of paid- |
Up share capital
4, | Feason why the asscciatafoint venture |s not Associate has been consclidated
— _consolidated
3. Met-worth attributable 1o Shareholding as per latest 10686412
| audited Balance Sheet
B | Profit{loss) far the year
i. Considered in consolidation (21.105)
ii. Mot Considered in conselidation hil

1. Names of the associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — Nil

2, Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year —
Nil

Arup Kumar Mitra Rajesh Gupta Sawita Jindal Mangat Ram Garg
CFO Company Secretary Director Director
DIN: 00449708 DIN: 00449740
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FORM NO. AOQC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred in sub section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) Mame(s) of the related party and the nature of relationship - —I— ==

(b} Mature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
(c) Duration of the contractsfarrangement/ fransactions

'l;dj Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

MIL
(2} Justification for enlering inte such contracts or arrangements or
| transactions

() Date of approval by the Board

(Q) Amount paid as advances, if any

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting |
as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length
basis:

{a) Name(s) of the related party and the nature of
relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions |
Duration of the contracts/arrangement/ transactions MNIL |
(a) .

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or |
transaction including the value, if any

Date of approval by the Board

_Amount paid as advances, if any

1



SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return
As on the financial year ended on 31* March, 2020
[Fursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the

Companies (Manageman! and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND QTHER DETAILS

i) CIN L17299WR1981PLC033331
ii) Registration Date 3" February, 1981
i) | Name of the Company SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED _
[ iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company Public
['v) Address of the Registered Office and contact 2/5, Barat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
details Flat No.84A, 8" Floor, Kolkata-700 020
West Bengal
i) Whether listed company Yes
i) Mame, Address and Contact details of Registrar | Alankit Assignments Limited
and Share Transfer Agent, if any Alankit House,
[ 4E/2, Jhandewszlan Extension,
Mew Delhi- 110055
Tel #91-11-42541234/23541234
Fax. 91-11-23552001
I | B Email: fagialankit.com )

Il. PRINCIFPAL BEUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be
stated:-

| 8, No, | Name and Description of main products NIC Code of % to total turnover of the
| [ services the Froduct/ company
SErVICE
1 Caommercial Loan and Investment 65923 31,77
2 Leasing of self-owned non-residential building .E?El“lDd- 118.23
| I

N, PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

Sl | NAME AND ADDRESS OF | CINJGLN HOLDING/ | %of | Applicabl |
No. | THE COMPANY SUBSIDIAR |shar |e Section|
] e85 |
ASSOCIATE | held
1 |Kushagra Infrastructure Private J28120WB2005PTC 102950 Associate 55{}.{}[]% 2(6)
Lirnited [ [
L _ ! |

1. Names of the associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — Nil
2. MNames of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year —
il



.
Total Equity)

_i) Category-wise Share Holding

Catagory of
Shareholders

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of

Mo, of Shares held at the
beginning of the year
(&g on 17 April, 2019)

Mo, of Shares held at the end of

the year (As on 31" March, 2020)

Y% |

| change

during

] Demat‘

Physic | Total
al

5
Taotal
Share

of

Demat

Physical

the year |

Total | % of
Total
Shar
25

PROMOTERS

(1} Indian

Indian/HUF

426835 -

42BB35

58,71

426835

426835 54.04

487

Central Govt,

State Gavt(s)

Bodies Corporate

107416 -

107416

14.78

143177

143177 1813

3.358

Bank/FI

£y  Any Other

Sub - Total

534251 -

534251

73.49

570012

570012 7217

-1.32

{2) Foreign

a) MRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

| ¢) Bodies Corporates

d) Bank/Fl|

b—

| g} Any Other

lEub - Total

| Total shareholding of
Promoters (A) =

(AT +(ANZ)

534251

534251

73.49

Y0012

Y0012 7217

1,32

Dematll Physic | Total

al

% of
Total
Share

Demat

Physical

Total % of |
Tatal
Shar

25

" B. Public Shareholding

Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Bank/Fl

¢) Central Government

d) State Government

e) Venture Capital

Funds

16



') Insurance | 4 - ] ] ] ] 1 ]
____ Comnoanies. — | -
a) Flis - 1 4 . 1 4 1 .
h) Foreign Ventures . 8 - . - -il - -
i\ Others (Specily) . i ] ] i 3 ] ]
Non-Institutions N !
'a) Bodies Corporates -| 25600 167109/192708) 26.61 188800 50926 F’19?2€ ??.83 1.3
- Indian = :
B)  Individuals 1 52 52 0.00; - 52 520 0.00 0.00
sharshalders |
halding naminal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh
Individuals - - i - - i i
sharehaldars
holding nominal
share capital in .
excess of Rs. 1 lakh '
¢) Others (Specify) - i _ - 22 : 22 000 0.00
Shares held against | '
fractional
___entitlement = | ~
Sub-total (B)(2): 25600 167161192761 26.51 168822 50878 219778 27.82 1.31
Total Public 25600 167161192761 26.51 1688220 500978 219778 27.82 1.31
shareholding '
' C. Shares held by ] - 5 . - - -
| Custodian for GDRs
| and ADRs |
" Grand Total (A+B+C) |559851] 167161727012 100.000 738834 50978 789812 100.00 0.00
(i) Shareholding of Pramoters
Sl | Share- ‘Shareholding at the | Shareholding at the end of the
N | holder's Name beginnin%; of the year year (As on 31" March, 2020)
Q. (As on 1% April, 2019)
— TNo.of | % of total | %of No.of | % of total | %of % change
Shares | Sharesof | Shares | Shares | Shares of | Shares in share
the Pledge the Pledged / | holding
Company e company | encumbe | during
encumb
Gied o red to the year
total total
shares | shares
1 ’IDharam Pal Jindal 88900 9.62 0.00 52900 §.85| D_Gljj -0.77|
i Dharam Pal Jindal 35150 484 000 35150 4.45 0.00] -0.39
{HUF) | !
| 3 Saket Jindal 70000 983 000 70000 8.86| 0.00 -0.77|
4 Savita Jindal 106662 1487  0.00 106662 13.5 0.00 -1.17]
5 |Raghav Jindal 145123 19.96]  0.00] 145123 18.37) 0.00 -1.59,
| B }Jmcﬂal Global Finance| 107416 14,77 000 107416 13.8] 0.00] 5 I I
and Investment Lid. | |
7. Flakt Dealcomm NA NA, Nal 35761 453 0.0/ 4.53|
imited | |
Total 534251 73.49 'D.ﬂﬂ‘i 570012 7216 'U.UEIE_ 1.33




{iifiChange in Promoters’ Shareholding

Sr. MName Shareholding al Dale [ncreasel Reason Shareholdng al the end |
Mo, the beginning of [Decrease of the year (As on 31"
the year fin arch, 2020)
(As on 1" April, 2019) sshareholdi
| i
| No.of P of total No.of  Faoftotal |
shares shares of the shares shares of the
| Company Company
|
1. | Flakt Gealcomm NA NA28.072019| 35761 On becoming 35761 4.53
. | Limited Promoter
[ | Sroup
| | Company®

“Az par scheme of Arangement bobtween Dytop Commedeal Limited (Demerged! Transferar Company) and Flakt Dealcomm Limited

{Transferee Company) approved by Hom'ble National Campany Law Tribunal, Kolkata,

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GORs and ADRs):
St Shareholding at ['Increase/Decrease Cumulative
Ma. the beginning of during the year Shareholding at the
the year end of the year
(As on 1% April, {As on 317 March,
2019 | 2020)
For Each of the Mo, of % of total | No. of Reason Na. % of total
Top 10 share shares of | shares of shares of
Shareholders 5 the shar the
| company es5 company |
1 Pushpanjali 70,000 863 28,0001ssue of 88,000 12.41
Investrade Pl Bonus Shares
Ltd,
2 GWVN Fuels 36,000 4.85 14,4000ssue of 50,400 4.95
Limited Bonus Shares
3 Flakt Dealcomm 35761 4.92 -35 761[9n becoming MNA NA
[ Ltd. Promoter
aroup
o ompany™
4 | Gautam Fin- 27,862 3.83 11,144 ssue of 39,008 4,94
Invest Private Bonus Shares
. Lirmited {
5 Jhanjhari 23,086 317, 9234(lssue of 32,320 4.04
Holdings Pvt. Ltd. [ Bonus Shares
6  Smt Sudha Gautam 0 0.00 221ssue of 22 0.00!
(Nominsa far | Bonus Shares
fractional shares
entitiement) |
7 Manoj Kumar i 0.00 4 i 2 0.00
. 1 |
& | ChhediLal Gupta 2 0.00 ] 5| 2 000
I [ —|
iz} Om Prakash | D.DDl 2 2 0.00
Gupta .

g




10 | Ramesh Pandey 2‘ D.GD‘ - . 2 0.00
11 | Ajay Joshi 71'_ 0.00 1 : 4 0.00
. | | |
{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl | Shareholding at Increase/Decrease Curnulative ]
Mo, the beginning of during the year Shareholding at the
' the year end of the year
01.04.2018 31.03.2020
| No. of B of Mo. of Reason Mo. of % of
share total share share tatal
5 share 5 = shares
s of of  the
the compan
comp ¥
| any
1 Smi. Savita 108662 14.67 4 MA. 106662 14.67
Jindal —Director
2 Shri R K. Banthia - 0.00 - N.A, - 0.00
! — Director*™**= |
3 Shri Vibhare 4 0.00 1 N.A, i, 0.00
Kaushik
| —Diretor |
' Shri Mangat Ram - 0.00 1 M.A, d 0.00
Garg —Director™
5 Shri Sunil 0.00) - NA. i 0.00
| Gautam-
.| Director** |
5] Dr. Roma Kumar- 4 0.00 oA - 0.00
Director*=*=**
5 Shri Rajesh 1 0.00! 2 NA 0 0.00
Gupta*** = C5
| [KMP)
6 Shri Arup Kumar ; 0.00 - N.A 0 0.00
- Iditra -
CFOKMP)

* Designated as Non- Executive Director of the Contpany and Chairman of the Board with effect fram 10th May 2018,

=+ pppointed as Company Secretary an 17 June, 2019,

=40 Aopointed as Whole-Time Diractar of the Company on 1% June, 2019.
s+ Resigned as Director on 8" August, 2019,

ssssssponointed as Independent Direclor of the Company en 87 August, 2019,



VI INDEBTEDNESS

Indobtedress of the Company including interest outstandinglaccrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding deposits| Loans

Unsecurad

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year {17 April, 2019)

Deposits

Total
[ndebtedness

i} Principal Amount

- 114,09,42,601

1
=1
-
o|
o
[wy]
=
-

i) Interest due but not paid

-

i) Interest accrued but not due

A ]

Total {i+i+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

1114,09.43,601

i

114,{19;3.561’!

Addition 1 5 1 =
. Reduction 1 19,44,66525 1 19,44_,_5_65_;5{
| Net Change | 4 19,44,66525 1 19,44 66525
[Indebtedness at the end of the [ |
| financial year (31" March, 2020)

i) Principal Amount . 34,54,??,13?5' 0 946477076
i) Interest due but not paid - 4 p '.
iil) Interest accrued but not due ] i 1 -
| Total (i+ii+il) «l 94,34’,??,u?e.i o gq,aa.Hmai

VIl. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONEL

A, Remuneration {o Managing Director, Whole-time Director andfor Manager:
S, Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Mangat Mr. Sunil Taotal |
e, | Ram Garg, Gautam, WTD- | Amount (Rs.) |
WTD —upto 10" | w.ef 1" June,
May, 2020 (Rs.) 2020 (Rs.)
T | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 1,533,810 623,230 21,57,040
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,
(b) Value of perguisites u/s 17(2) 4 4 .
Income-tax Act, 1961 -
c) Profits in lieu of salary under & . —
| section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2, | Stock Option 2 ] '

3 Sweat Equity - -
| 4. Commission | i ]

- as % of profit .
- others, specify... 9 i

5. Others, please specify - 4 -

Tatal (A) 1,833,810 523,230 21,587,040
]




N,

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Farticulars of
Remuneration

Shri LK.
Banthia-
upta 8"
August,

| 2019

Shri
Vibhore
Kaushik

dindal

Smt. Savita | Dr. Roma

Kumar-

w.ef 8"
August,

2020

Tatal
Armaunt

3. Independent Directors
« Fee for attending
board commities
meetings
- Commission

MIL

NIL

MIL|

ML

Total (1)

4, Other Mon-Executive
Directors
- Fea for attending
board committee
meelings
- Commission

NIL

MIL

MIL

NlU;

Total (2)

MIL

MIL

Total (B)=(1+2)

Tetal Managerial
Remuneration (A)+(B)

21,57,040

c.

MD/MANAGER/WTD

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

fAmount in Rs.)

SL

no,

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

1

CEO

Mr. Rajesh
Gupla,
C8—weif-1"
June, 2020

Mir. Arup Kumar

Mitra, CFO

Tatal

Gross salary

M.A

859,348

273,933

12,33.281

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Acl,

(o) Value of perguisites
u/g

(a) Profits in ieu of salary unden
section 17(3) Income-tax
Aot 1961

Stock Option

| Sweat Equity

Commission
as % of profit
- others, specify...

et T T S [

Others, please specify

Total

ML

859,344

2,73.933 1233281

2




VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

ype Section of Briei  Details of Penalty/ Authority  Appeal made, if
the Descriptio punishment/ (RO/NCLTY any { give
Companies n compounding Colirt) ctails}
| Act ' ees imposed
:F'enalty
Funishment
Compounding PN s i s s s st

OTHER OFFICERS INDEFAULT
Penalty

Punishment

Comﬁuu nding

22



STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND
RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

a) The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of
the employees of the Company for the financial year 2019-2020 and percentage
increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company

Secretary in the Financial year 2019-2020.

S.No Narme of
Director ! KMP and

Designation

| Remuneration of

Director! KMP for

fimanclal year 2019-2020 (Rs)
|

Ratio of remuneration of
each Cirgctor to median
remuneration of

S Increase in
Remuneration in the
financial year 201%-

- employees 2020
| *Mr. Mangat Ram Garg 15,533,810
| | (Whale Time Director)
upte 10.05.2019
Mr. Sunil Gautam G, 832350 -

2. {(Whale Time Directar)
wea f- 01.05.2019

*Mrs. Savita Jindal

i (Mon- Executive
_Dractor)
*Mr, Vibhore Kaushik
1 (Mon- Excoutive

Independant Director)

“Dr. Roma Kumar

- {Mon- Execulive

Independant Directer)

Mre. Arup Milra 273,523 -3
& {CFO) i

=*iir, Rajesh Gupta
T (Company Secretary) 5,545,348

* designmied a5 Won- Excewtive Director of the Company with effect from 10" May 2019

**Appointed 03 Whale- tine Director w.e . 1® June, 2009
n

*** During the year ended 31% March, 2020 no remuncrstion was paid to NMon-Executive Direztors in view of them having waived thear

cntitlement to receive the sitling foe.

«o2 Anpointed as Compony Scorctary woe L 1 June, 2019

b) The percentage decrease in the median remuneration of the employees in the

financial

year 2019-2020 was -25%.

c] As of March 31, 2020, there were 9 permanent employees on the rolls of the

Company.

d)} Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employee other than
the managerial persennel in last financial year i.e 2018-2020 was -13 % whereas
percentage increase in the managerial remuneration in the last financial year i.e
2019-2020 was -3 %.

e) The Board of Directors of the Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the
Remuneration Paolicy of the Company.




SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sound Corporate Governance is essential to enhance the shareholders’ trust and value, Your
Company conducts its affairs with the highest levels of integrity, with proper authorizations,
accountability, disclosure and transparency. The Company strongly believes in maintaining a simple
and transparent corporate structure driven solely by business needs. Shareholders’ interests are on
utmost prionty while protecting the interest of other stakeholders, customers, suppliers and its
employees and the management is only a trustee to carry out the activities in a truthful and fruitful
manner.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements as stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read
with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Lisiing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with regard to corporate governance.

1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Company's policy is to have appropnate mix of Executive and Non-Executive/
Independent Directors including one women Director on the Board. The Company has one
Executive Director. The number of Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) exceeds 50% of the total
number of Directors. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10
Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees (as specified under SEBI (Listing
Ohiligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, across all companies in which
they are Directors. The Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their Committee
positions.

The Chairman of the Board is Non- Executive Independent Director.

All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEEBI (Listing Obligaticns and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

A Certificate under Clause (i) of point {(10) of para C of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
by M/s Hemant Singh and Associates, Company Secretaries confirming that none of the
Directors on the Beoard of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appoinied or continuing as Directors of the Company by Securities and Exchange Board of
India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is attached.

Board Functioning and Procedure

During the year ended 31% March, 2020, the Board of Directors met (9) nine times on
10" May, 2019, 28" May 2019, 1% June, 2019, 8" August 2019, 12" September, 2019,
15" October, 2019, 12" December, 2019, 1" January, 2020 and 13" February, 2020, The
Board periodically reviews the compliance report of all laws applicable to the Company. The
names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board mestings
during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting and also the number of Directorships
held by them in other companies as on 31* March, 2020 are given below:

Atlendance Ko, of cther Directorships and Commates | Lisled Enlty where e
Sharis Memberships/ Chaxmanships held duaaciar s a dirsctor &

Dimectors Category B Boang Last | Directarships Commithas Commiliea Categony of Directorship

| : Keeting AGM Memberships | Chaemanship

| ] 3

[ St Mar- 106,682 5 Mo 1 . T
Savili Exgoulig

| Jindal I

| *5hi Chairman- - ] Yos ] -

| (T8:3 Mo |
Garg Exesulig | —
Sha REK | Ingdependent - 3 | o 3 = —— e
Banlhia® |




Mate:

[Ena Indepencen - g | Yas i T E T~ - | Swble Trading Company |
\Wibhare Limited- Indamandent

[ Faushik [ Director

[ Tr Rema | Independent - | £ | HNo Maharashia Seamiess |
Kamart" | Limiteg

I

I Shri Sdnil | Exéculiva B & Na
Gautam | |

“desigmated as Non- Executive Director of the Company and Chadrman of the Board with etfect from 107 May 20149,
“ceased as Director on 8th August, 2019

HrAppointed as Director on 8th Aupust, 2019

i ppointed as Director/WTD on 1st June, 2019

1. Only Audit and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committees are considered
2 Excludes directorship m Foreign Companies.
3, Mo Directars 15 related wath other Directars

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company's Independent Directors meet at least once in every financial year without the
presence of Executive Directors or management personnel, inter alia, to discuss.

the performance of Non Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole,

the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively perform its duties.

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 13" February, 2020. All
Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

Familiarisation Programme

The Directors are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal
policies to enable them to familiarize with the Company's procedures and practices. Periodic
presentations are made at the Beard and Board Commitiee meetings on business and
performance updates of the Company. Detailed presentations on the Company's business
segments were made at the separate meeting of the Independent Directors

The details of familiarization programmes for Independent Directors are posted on the
Company's website and can be accessed at
http: / fwww.sudhaapparels.com/programme. pdf

CORE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In terms of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
relating to the Corporate Governance, the Board has identfied the following caore
skillsfexpertise/competencies for the Board of Directors in the context of business of the
Company to function effectively and those actually available with the Board as follows:

(i) Industry specific knowledge/ experience;

(i) Financial literacy/experiise including appreciation of legall regulatory issues;
(i) General administrative experlise including HR matier; and

{iv) Knowledge of contemporary socio economic issues.

In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board has identified the following
core skills [ expertise [ competencies of the Directors in the context of the Company's
business for effective functioning as given below:



| Smit. Savita Jindal

Shri M R. Garg

Shir Wibhore
Faushis

| Dr. Roma
| Kumar

Sunil Gautam

Industry zspecific
knowledge! experience,

Yes

Yos

Financial
Meracylexperlise
including appreciation of
legall regulalory issues,
General adminiatrative
experiise including HR
maiter; and

Yas

Yes

Yes Yes

Yem Yeg

Yes

.l'l"ES

Yes

rnowledge of
| -:'.ﬂnt&mpc:-ran,' S0CI0
| Boonomic Ssues,

Yes

Yes

Yes Yes

Yas

Yes

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per guidelines set out in the Regulation 18
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Commitiee provides directions to the audit functions
and monitors the quality of internal and statutory audit.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include overseeing the financial reporting process,
to ensure fairness, sufficiency and credibility of financial statements, review findings of internal
auditers relating to various functions, recommendation of appointment and removal of statutory
auditors, internal auditors and cost auditors and fixation of their remuneration; review of the
quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board with particular
reference to matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’'s Report in terms of clause (¢) of Sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, review of adequacy and compliance of internal control systems and the
internal audit function; review of compliance with laws,; inspection of records and audit reports
and reports of statutory auditors; review of findings of internal investigations; review of statement
of significant related party transactions; review of management letters/letter of internal control,
weaknesses issued by statutory auditors, discussion on the scope of audit with external auditors
and examination of reasons for substantial defaults, if any in the payment to shareholders:
review the functioning of the VWhistle Blower mechanism etc.

COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee of the Company comprised of three Directors consisting of one Executive
Director and two Non-executive Independent Directors. All members of the Commitiee possess
knowledge of Corporate-finance, Accounts and Company Law. The Chairman of the Committee
is an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Audit Committee.

Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are noted by the Board of Directors at the subsequent
Board meeting.

During the year under review 5 Audit Committee meetings were held on 29" May, 2019,
12" September, 2019, 15" October, 2019, 12" December, 2019, 1% January, 2020 and
13" February, 2020. The composition, names of the members, chairperson, and particulars of
the meetings and attendance of the members during the year are as follows:

Members | Category No. of meetings attended |
Shri Vibhore Kaushik® Chairman =]

Shri R.K. Banthia™ Meamber e

Shr M.E, Garg Wember 1 &

Dr. Roma Kumar**™* Member ]




* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee on 8" August, 2019
**Ceased to be Chairman/member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019
***Appointed as member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors to review the internal control systems of the
Company and to report thereon. The Audit Commitiee reviews the repors of the Internal
Auditors pericdically.

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the terms of
reference of the NRC are as per guidelines set out in Regulation 19 of SEEI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The said Committee has been entrusted to formulate the criteria for determining qualification,
positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating
to remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of
criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, dewising a policy on Board
diversity, identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal etc.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three Non-Executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Committee is Non-Executive Independent Director, During the year under review
meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 1% June, 2019,
8" August, 2019 and 13" February, 2020. The constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee as on 31" March, 2020 is as under-

Name of the Members | Designation | No. of Meetings attended |
Shri Vibhore Kaushik | Chairman | 3

Shri R.K. Banthia® Member | 1

Smt. Savita Jindal Member 3

Dr. Roma Kumar** Member 1 B

*Ceased to be member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019
**Appointed as member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019

Momination and Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is designed to attract, motivate, improve productivity
and retain manpower, by creating a congenial work environment, encouraging initiatives,
personal growth and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging and involvement, besides
offering appropriate remuneration packages. The policy reflects the Company's objectives for
good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation for shareholders. This
Remuneration Policy applies to Directors, senior management including its Key Managerial
FPersonnel (KMP) and other employees of the Company.

Remuneration of Whole Time Director reflects the overall remuneration philosophy and guiding
principles of the Company. When considering the appointment and remuneration of Whaole Time
Director, due consideration 15 given to pay and employment conditions in the industry, merit and
seniority of the person and the paying capacity of the Company.

The Company's Remuneration Policy is guided by a reward framework and set of principles and
ohjectives as more fully and particularly envisaged under the Companies Act, 2013 inter alia

principles periaining to determining qualifications, positive attributes, integnty and independence
et
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Femuneration also aims to motivate personnel to deliver company's key business strategies,
create a strong performance oriented environment and reward achievement of meaningful
targets over the short and long term.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the company has been uploaded and can be
accessed on the Company's website at hiip:/fwww.sudhaapparels.com/NRC%Z0Policy%20-
Sudha.pdf.

Directors' Remuneration

Remuneration paid te the Directors during the financial year ended 31% March, 2020 is as under:
{a) The Details of remuneration paid to Whale-time Director:

{Amount in Bs))

Name Salary Perguisites and Taotal
other benefits
Shri Mangat Ram Garg 15,33,810 Nil 15,33.810
(upto 10.05.2019)
Shri Sunil Gautam 6,23,230 Mil 6,23,230
(1.06.2019-31.03.2020)

{(b) The Non- Executive Directors are entitled to be paid by way of sitting fees for meetings
of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee, During the year ended 31* March, 2020 -
no remuneration was paid to MNon-Exscutive Directors in view of them having waived
their entittement to receive the sitting fee.

Apart from being entitled to Directors’ remuneration by way of sitting fee for attending
meetings of the Board and Audit Committee, none of the Nan- Executive Directors had

any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during the year ended
31% March, 2020.

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIEILITY COMMITTEE
Your Directors have constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in
reference to the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, the said Committee met on 28" May, 2020. The
constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on 31* March, 2020 is

as under.-
Members Designation ;
Shri Mangat Ram Garg Chairman
Shri R.K. Banthia * _ Member
_Shri Vibhore Kaushik ) Member
Dr. Roma Kumar** Member

“ceased to be member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019
**Appointed as member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and
recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation
of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amecunt to be spent on CER
activities.
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STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee under the
Chairmanship of a Non-Executive Director of the Company. The Committee mests
periodically, to approve inter-alia, transferftransmission of shares, issue of duplicate
share certificates and reviews the status of investors' grievances and redressal
mechanism and recommends measures to improve the level of investor services.
Details of shares transfers/transmissions approved by the Committee are placed at the
Board meetings from time to time.

COMPOSITION
The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committes is as under-
I_N;ne of the Members | Designation i
Smt. Savita Jindal Chairperson
Shri_ Mangat Ram Garg | Member
| *Shri R.K. Banthia Member
**Dr. Roma Kumar Member ]

*ceased to be member of the Committee on 8" August, 2018
**Appointed as member of the Committee on 8" August, 2019
Compliance Officer

The Board has designated Mr. Rajesh Gupta, Company Secretary as Compliance
Officer of the Company.

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of
Shareholders

MNumber of Shareholders complaints received ‘
[gg_r_i_gg the period 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020 | ¥ Nil |
Number of complaints not solved to the |
satisfaction of shareholders : Nil
INumber of pending complaints as on 31.03.2020

which were solved later on. IE il

DESIGNATED EMAIL ID FOR INVESTORS
The Company has designated the following e-mail ID exclusively for redressal of
investor grievance i.e. secretarial@sudhaapparels.com

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary Company.

The Company monitors performance of subsidiary companies by the following means:-
-Financial statements of subsidiary companies are reviewed by the Audit Commitise.
-Minutes of Board meetings of subsidiary companies are placed before the Board
meetings of the Company regularly.

The Company has adopted a Policy in line with the requirements of the Listing
Regulations, The objective of this policy is to lay down criteria for identification and
dealing with material subsidiaries and to formulate a governance framework for
subsidianies of the Company. The policy on Material Subsidiary is available on the
website of the Company under the web link
http:/fwww sudhaapparels.com/Material Subsidiary. pdf
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6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

7.

(I} Details of the last three Annual General Meetings:

| Date Location of the Meeting Time
Financial
year

2016-17 | 28.09.2017

| 11.30AM.

Registered Office of the Company at

215, Sarpt Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat No. 8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 .
| 2017.18 | 28 092018 Registered Office of the Company at 11 30AM

2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,

R R Flat No. 84, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 |
Registered Office of the Company at | ,

2017-18 | 27052018 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar, [ 11.30AM.

| Flat No. 84, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 020 |

(il Special resolutions passed in the preceding three Annual General Meetings.

&y | In the Annual General Meetings | Nons

held on 28" September, 2017

By | In the Annual General Meetings | None
held on 28" September, 2018 |

¢l | In the Annual General Meetings | a) Issue of Bonus shares to non-promoiers
held on 27" September, 2019 {Public} shareheglders of the Company.

by  Amendmemt of Object  Clause of
Memorandum of Association

| ¢ Amendment of Liabililty Clause of
| Memorandum of Association

dy Armendment of Articles of Association

{if} Special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

During the year under review, no special resolution was passed through postal ballot
None of the special resolutions is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As required under Schedule VWV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Certificate on Corporate Governance has been
annexed to the Board's Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with the requirements of the SEEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 the Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by
the Directors, KMPs and designated employees.

MEANS OF COMMURNICATION

The Company's financial results are communicated to CSE Limited with whom the
Company has listing arrangement, as soon as they are approved and taken on record by
the Board of Directors of the Company. Thereafter the results are normally published in
The Financial Express (English) and Sukhabar (Bengali). The Financial Resulis are also
available on the Company's website http:/fwww. sudhaapparels.com.
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10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
{a) Annual General Meeting:
Date and Time: 28" September, 2020 at 3.00 P.M,
Venue: Through video conferencing
(b) Financial Year: 1% April, 2019 to 31% March, 2020
{c) Dividend Payment Date: N.A,
(d) Listing on stock Exchange:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited, 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata- 700 001 (Weslt Bengal) and Listing Fee upto
2020-21 has been duly paid,

(e) Stock Code

Scrip ID: SUDHA APPARELS
Scrip Code: 10029405
NSDL/ CDSL ~ ISIN INE207F01012

(f) Market Price Data

There was no ftrading of shares on CSE during the period from 1% April 2019 to
31* March, 2020.
{g) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE sensex,

CRISIL Index etc.
Not Applicable as the Company is listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange only.

{h) In case securities are suspended from trading, the directors shall explain the
reason thereof:

The Company has complied with all the requirements of Listing Agreement/SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 from time to time. During
the Company's suspension has been revoked under Amnesty Scheme of the Calcutta
Stock Exchange.

(i) Registrar and Transfer Agent

Alankit Assignment Limited

Alankit House,

4E/2, Jhandewalan Extension,

Mew Delhi = 110055

Fhone: 011-42541234, 011-23541234

Fax: 011- 23552001, e-mail: ta@alankit.com

(i} Share Transfer System:

In accordance with Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, effective from April, 1, 2018, transfers of
shares of the Company, except in case of request received for transmission or
transposition of securities, shall not be processed unless the shares are held in the
dematerialized form with a depository. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are
requested to have their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them.
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(k) Distribution of shareholding as on 31* March, 2020

. N;J. E Share-

. No. of_Equity % of share- | No. of | % of
Shares held halders holders Shares held Shareholding
_ Upto 500 | 45 78.95 74 0.01
! E01-1000 o | 2 | - = |
1001-2000 | - - ] - Bl
| 2001-3000 - - | — w |
3001-4000 - - . =
| 4001-5000 - - - |
'5001-10000 . . - )
10001 above | 12 | 21.05 7,89,738 100.00
Total | 57 | 100.00 789,812 | 100.00
Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2020
| : 0,

Caegary - o D:eslgarﬂa | Eharjhuoflding |
Bisinatars . 570012 7217
Prvate Bodies Corporate i 219726 2782
Indian Fublic T4 0.01

Grand Total 789812 100.00
(1) Dematerialization of shares

93.54 % of total paid-up equity shares of the Company were in dematerialized form as on
315 March, 2020,

(m}

date and likely impact on equity:

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Bonds, conversion

There is no outstanding GDRs/ADRs or convertible Bonds ete.

fn} Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

Company's nature of business is of investment and financing, hence there is no
commeaodity price risk or foreign exchange risk
{0) Plant Locations: N.A.

(P Address for correspondence:

Shareholders' correspondence should be addressed to the Registrar and Transfer Agent
at the following address:

Alankit Assignment Limited

Alankit Heights,

1EM3, Jhandewalan Extension,

MNew Delhi — 110055

Phone: 011-23541234, 42541234

Fax: 011- 42541967, e-mail: ta@alankit.com

Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form should address all their
correspondence to their respective Depository Participants.

11. OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) Related Party Transactions
There have been related party transactions as reflected in the notes to the accounts but
they are not in conflict with the interest of the Company. All transactions have been
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approved by the Audit Committee and all transactions entered into by the Company with
the related parties during the financial year were on the arm's length basis.

The Board has approved a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions which has
been wuplocaded on the website of the Company at the following link
http://sudhaapparels. com/SudhaRPTPolicy, pdf.

b) Accounting Standards
The Company follows the Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India and there has been no deviation during the year.

c) Details on Non Compliance
There were no penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI, or any cther statutory authorities on any matter related to the capital
markets during the last 3 years.

d} CEQICFO Certificate

Shiri Shrikant Ladia, Whole Time-Director and Shri Satish Saxena, CFO have furnished
the required cerfificate to the Board of Directors pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

e) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and has established the necessary
vigil mechanism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 for Directors and employees to report
cancerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viclation of the
Company's code of conduct. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. The said policy has been disclosed on the Company's website under
the web link http://sudhaapparels.com/SudhaWhistieBlowerPolicy. pdf.

d) Detail of compliance with mandatory requirements and Adoption of Non-
mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Schedule \V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Eegulations, 2015 The Company
has also complied with following non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27(1) read
with Part E of Schedule || of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Fegulations, 2015,

A. Shareholder Rights

Financial positions of the company are posted on the website of the Company.
B. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The Financial Statements of the Company are ungualified.
C. Reporting of Internal auditor

Internal Audit Reports are directly reported to audit committee.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior

Management personnel. The Code has also been posted on the Company's website
http:fiwww sudhaapparels.com.

The Code has been circulated to all members of the Board and senior management personnel and
the compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics is affirmed by them annually.

A declaration signed by the Whole-time Director of the Company is given below,
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This is to certify that, all Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed

compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management for the financial year
ended 31* March, 2020,

Sunil Gautam

Date: 24" August, 2020 Whole Time Director
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ta,

The Members

Sudha Apparels Limited

215 Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat Mo 8A, &th Floor,
Kolkata-700020

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SUDHA APPARELS
LIMITED (the Company'), for the year ended 31%' March, 2020, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to
27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C and D of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Fegulations, 2015 (*SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance, It is neither an audit nor an
expressicn of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For HEMANT SINGH & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

HEMANT KUMAR SINGH

(Fartner)
Flace: New Delhi FCS-6033
Dated: 24" August, 2020 C.P. No. : 6370
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

SUDHA APPARELS LTD
275, Sarat Bose Road,

Sukh Sagar Flat No. 8A,
Kolkata-700020

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directars of Sudha Apparels Ltd having CIN L17299WB1981PLC033331 and having its registered
office at 2/5, Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar Flat No, 8A, Kolkata-700020 (hercinafter referred to as
‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of i issuing this Centificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(1) of the Securitics and
Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the wverifications [including
Directors [dentification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mea.gov.in] as considered necessary
and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the
Dirgetors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 3 1st March,
2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Sceurities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such
other Stattory Authority:

8. No | Name of Director | DIN | Date of Appointment

i Mr. Mangat Ram Garg (0449709 01072014

2. Ms. Savita Jindal 00449740 30/12/2005 N
3. | Mr. Vibhore Kaushik 01834866 30/01/2017

4. Ms. Roma Kumar 02194012 O&/082019

3. “Mr. Sunil Gautam | 08125576 01/06/201% e

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as (o the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For Hemant Singh & Associates
Campany Scerelaries

Hemant Kumar Singh
(Partner)

M. No: F6033

CP No.: 6370

UDIN: FODG033BO0060Y3 50
Date: 24.08,2020

Place: Delhi
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis
Forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31% March, 2020

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statement in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis Repart contains
“forward-looking statements” about the business, financial performance, skills and prospects of the
Company. Statements about the plans, intentions, expectations, beliefs, estimates, predictions or
similar expression for future are farward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements should be viewed in the context of many risk issues, and events that
could cause the actual perfoermance to be different from that contemplated in the Directors' Report
and Management Discussion and Analysis Report, including but net limited to, the impact of
changes in oil, Steel prices worldwide and domestic, economic and political conditions. We cannot
assure that outcome of this forward-looking statements will be realized. Factors like changes in
Government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as industrial relations and economic
developments etc. may further influence the company's operations or performance. The Company
disclaims any duty to update the information given in the aferesaid reports.

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW

The World Health Organization \WHO] declared COVID-19 as a pandemic on March 11, 2020. The
pandemic has impaired global economy, international trade, financial structures, and most
importantly human health and healthcare infrastructure, Factoring in the adverse effect of the
pandemic, the IMF, in June 2020, projected global GDP for CY2020 to contract by as much as 4.9%
- signalling the worst recession the world has seen since the Great Depression of the 1930s. The
COVID-18 crisis threatens to reverse a significant part of the progress made in recent years, and it
is feared millions of people will be pushed back into poverty.

YWhat happens to global growth in the second half will depend on three factors: when the spread of
the pandemic comes under control, whether sufficient stimulus is in place; and to what extent post-
pandemic caution from households and businesses restrains economic activity.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Indian GDP growth continued its downward trajectory in every successive quarter of FY 2019-20,
expanding by a mere 3.1% in the fourth quarter and 4.2% for the entire FY 2013-20 - the slowest
growth since FY 2008-09. The downward spiral which began with outflow of internaticnal
investments soon ballooned into a consumption slowdown led by weakening credit growth due to
liquidity constraints facing the NBFCs, credit averseness amongst banks, weak capital expenditure,
and a slowdown in manufacturing. The government and the RB| announced a slew of measures
during the year to revive the economy by trying to boost demand. In September 2019, the
Government of India slashed the corporate tax rates from 30% to 22% [15% for new domestic
manufacturing companies = amongst the lowest in the world] in an attempt to promote investment
and boost growth. This complemented aggressive rate cuts from the RBI which reduced the
benchmark policy rate in multiple steps from 6% in April 2019 to 4.4% in March 2020. However, the
economic disruption intensified in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic, and the consequent nationwide lockdown. Amid fast-changing macroeconomic
environment and a deteriorating outlook for growth, the Monetary Policy Committes [MPC] held off-
cycle meetings in March and May, cumulatively reducing repo rate by a total of 115 basis points to
4.00%, the lowest level since the year 2000,
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OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

The Company foresees, new oppoeriunities to come up to expand its operations by way of equity
participation in new projects/expansion of existing projects, considering long term growth potential of
the Country. The NBFC seclor holds immense potential in view of the Government of India's
increased focus towards Financial Inclusien.

The economic recovery, coupled with contained inflation has brightened the prospects of business
growth. With multiple players invading the market, the ability to compete effectively will depend, to
some extent, on the Company’s ability to raise low cost funds in future.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in the business of Finance/|nvestment activities and Renting of Property.
The segment-wise performance has been disclosed in Note 17 of Financial Statements.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

As an NBFC, your Company is subjected to both external and internal risks. External risks due to
interest rate fluctuation, slowdown in economic growth rate, political instability, market volatility,
decline in foreign exchange reserves, etc. Internal risk is associated with your Company's business
which includes the strategic invesiments in a specific sector. Any downward movement in the
prospects of the sector could be a threat to the Company's prospects.

At this juncture of rapidly evelving macroeconomic risks, it becomes imperative for business to track
the macroeconomic performance on an ongoing basis. Your Company recognizes the importance of
risk management and has invested in people, process and technologies to effectively mitigate the
above risks, 20 as to arrive at a profitable investment decision.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control system, commensurate with its size and nature of
operations, covering assurance of recording all the transaction details, regulatory compliance and
protecting the Company assets from any kind of loss or misuse. Accounting records are adequate
for preparation of financial statements and other financial information. Internal Audit is conducted on
a periodical basis to ascertain the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Tetal income of the Company during the year was Rs, 766519 lakhs as against Rs, 1421517 lakhs
in the previous year. The profit before tax during the year was Rs. 3589.63 lakhs as against

Rs. 813.38 lakhs in the previous year. The profit after tax was Rs. 3153.63 lakhs as against Rs.
379.92 lakhs in the previous year.

HUMAMN RESOURCES

Your Company has employed professionalsfexperienced persons, playing an important role in the
aperations of the Company. The Company will strengthen its operative staff as and when the need
arises.



independent Auditors’ Report

Ta the Members of Sudha Apparels Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Sudha Apparels Limited
["the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Eguity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘standalone Ind AS financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013{the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards{" Ind AS")
specified under Section 133 of the Act, of, of the state of affairs {financial position) of the Company as
at 31 March, 2020, and its Profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statement in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 142(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India({lCAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act,
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statement of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of aur audit of the standalone financial statement as a whaole, and in forming our opinion
therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. \We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report, We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone ind A5 financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis far our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

| (REI) direcfc_i_r:_br};_._

First time adoption of Ind AS (as refer Mote
no.27 of standalone Ind AS financial statements)

with  the roadmap for
implementation of Ind AS for non-banking
linancial companies, as announced by the

In  accordance

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the company has
adopted Ind As from April 1, 2019 with an
1,2018 for such
transition, For periods up to and including the
year ended March 31, 2019. The company had
prepared and presented its Standalone Ind AS

effective date of April

financial staternents in accordance with the

grstwhile  generally accepted accounting
principles in India (Indian GAAP). In order to
give effect of transition to the Ind AS these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the
vear ended March 31, 2020, together with the
for the
previous yvear ended March 31, 2019 and the

transition date balance sheet as at April 1, 2018

comparative financial information

have been prepared under Ind AS.

The transition has invelved significant change
in the Company's policies and processes for
financial reporting, including generation of
supportable and  applying
estimates to inter-alia determine impact of Ind
AS on accounting and disclosure requirements
prescribed under extent Reserve Bank of India

information

substantive procedures:

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

' Our audit procedures include the following

- Read the Ind AS impact assessment
performed by the Management and the
resultant changes made to the
accounting policies considering  the
requiremnents of the new framework.

- We understood the exemption availed
by the management in applying the
first -time adoption principles of Ind AS
101,

- We understood the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements closure process
{including disclosure in notes to

accounts) and the additional controls

established by

transition to Ind AS. We have tested the

the Company for
design and operating effectiveness of
key controls for processes identified by
the company for impact assessment,

- Woe understood the changes made to
accounting policies in light of the
requirements of the new framework.

- We performed text of details on the

accounting adjustments posted as at the

transition date and in respect of the

previous year to convert the finandal |
information reported under erstwhile Indian
GAAP to Ind AS.
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|In view of the complexity involved, Ind AS | We assessed the disclosures included in the Ind

transition and the preparation of Standalone | AS financial statements in accordance with the
Ind AS financial statements subsequent to the | requirements of Ind AS 101, with respect to
transition date have been areas of key focus in | previous years presented.

| our audit. |

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Nete 34 in the financial statements relating to Company helds 150 Bonds of Yes
Bank for Rs. 152 685,000/~ In present scenario the value of Bands is nil. The holders of Yes Bank Bonds
approached to Apex Court and placed a proposal to Yes Bank Bonds are converted into Equity Shares in
ratio of 1 Bond: 19551 equity shares of Rs. 2 each with locking period of 3 years. The decision is pending
in Apex Court, Further we refer note no. 30 relating to Capital Advance.

Information Qther than the Financial Statements and Auditer's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does
not include the Standalone Ind AS financial staternents and our auditor’s report thereon. The report
containing other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
repart.

Cur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not exprass any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of cur audit or
otherwise appears to materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2012 ["the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind A5 financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder,

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the prowvisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasconable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable , matters related to going
concern and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are 2lso responsible for cverseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatemnents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

A5 part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve callusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. [f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
EoiNg concern.

Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation,
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider gquantitative materiality and
qgualitative factors in [i) planning the scope of our audit work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the standalone financial staterments.

We communicate with those charged with the governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with therm all relationships and
cther matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosures about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the transition date opening balance sheet as
at April 1, 2018 included in these Standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously
issued statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and statutory financial
statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2019 prepared in accordance with the Companies [Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditors whose report dated 29" May 2018 and 29"
May 2015 respectively, expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the
differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which
have been audited by us.

Mote Mo, 26 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements which states that the company has first time
adapted Ind AS for the financial year commencing from April 1, 2019, and accordingly, the standalone
annual financial results have been prepared by the Company’'s Management in compliance with Ind AS.

Qur gpinian is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in the paragraph 2 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :

a we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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. ihaur apinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

in our apinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

an the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taker on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2020 from being appainted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure B, our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

with respect to the other matters ta be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinicn and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by
the Company to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act,

. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (a3 amended), in our opinion and to the
best of aur information and according to the explanations given to us :

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements. Refer to Note 29 to the standalone Ind A5 financial
statements;

ii. The Campany does not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31,2020,

iti. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transterred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRM: 0023396MN

(Pallav Kumar Vaish)
Partner

Membership no.: 508751

UDIN: 20508751AAAADVS427

Place: Gurugram
Date: 317" July 2020
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone Ind A5 financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we repart that:

i)

(i)

{iiiy

(v

(v)

ivi)

r

]

=3

{€)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

() The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner gver a pericd of three years, In accordance
with this program, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets,
ic) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company.

The Inventory representing units of Mutual Fund is held by the Company in Demat Form which
has been verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the
explanations given to us, the frequency of verification is reasonable, and no material
discrepancies were noticed on the aforesaid verification.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to body corporates covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act’); and with respect to the
SAME;

In our opinion, rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been
granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act
were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

in the case of the loans granted to the body's corporate listed in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of interest and the
principal amounts are being received/renewed on the due dates.

There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

In qur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
pravisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost under section 148(1) of
the Act, for any services rendered by the Company.
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(wit)

{wiii}

(ix)

4x)

(%)

la) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the bocks of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, ESI, income tax,
goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employees’ state
insurance and duty of excise,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, £S5, income tax, good and service tax, duty of customs, cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six
maonths from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of duty of
custorms which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute, However, according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
income tax, Goods and service tax, Custom duty and cess have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes:

A t ; i
Mature of the r:nnun Forum where dispute is
- MNature of the dues Disputed endin

|RsfLacs) ¢ b
1 income  Tax lincome Tax demand 4.53 CIT{A) AY 2008-09
Act Incame Tax demand 3,80 CIT{A) AY 2012-13

, . Apex Court Oct. 2010 to
2. Service Tax | Service Tax demand 3818 S
Sep. 2011

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan either
from financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3{ix) of the
Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
aur audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid [/ provided for managerial remuneration in

accordance with the reguisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197, read with
Schedule W to the Act.
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{xii)

(=)

(i)

{xv)

[xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a MNidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicabile.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
Accarding to the infarmation and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv} of the Order is not
applicable,

In our opinion and on the basis of records and documents examined by us the company is

required to be registered u/s 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and the company has
obtained such registration.

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRM: DOB326N

(Pallav Kumar Vaish)
Fartner

hMembership no.: 508751

LIDin: 20508751A0AADVS42T

Place: Gurugram
Date: 317 July 2020
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sudha Apparels Limited {‘the
Company’) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {'the Guidance Mote') and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by 1CAlI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Cantrals and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. &
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of recerds that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the campany are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitian,

use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in eanditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Modified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, the Company
does not have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were not operating effectively as
at March 2020, based on the criteria for internal control over financial reporting established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote an Audit

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of india.

For Kanodia Sanyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: C0E8396MN

{Pallav Kumar Vaish)
Partner

Membership nos: 508751
UDIN: 20508751AAAA0W9427

Flace: Gurugram
Date: 317 July 2020
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SUDHA AFPARELS LINITED

BALAMCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH " 2020
Nate
Farticulars No Asat 31.03.2020 a5 at 31.03.20149 A%t 01.04.2018
ASZETS
[L} |Financial Assets
L) Cash and cash equi sale nts 1 1,560,742 2,232,679 2500602
s} jBanl: BLlarce other than (a) above x L, 133,000,000
(ol |Denvatice financial instruments
[k} [Redekaables
i} Trade Aecemables 3 44,220,821 453 618 47,275,849
iy Sther Recsivables
(i} |Laany 4 1.5E7.331,545 1,539,577,719 L, 118,408,350
il |lnwestmnents 5 2,800,484, 701 L ETEDT3 482 1, 985,414,761
Igl |Ocher Financial asse1s
(2] [Man-financial Assers
| fal |laventeries L] 44,000,000 259,602, BE8 -
| b} [Curraat tax assets (Het) 7 547,251,152 402,267,043 378,654,242
fe] | Defereed 12 Assens (aot] = . .
[f)  |lswesiment Property g E92.6uib 440 612,133,172 632,657,204
| [} |Blelogical assets ather than beares plants = - .
{f) |Propemy, Plant and Equipment ] 146,193,660 147,354,485 14 108, 960
(gl |Capral wors-in proaress
| ih |intangible assets under development
1] |[Goodwill
il |@ther intiagibhe ssreis
() |3ther non-financizl assers 5 BB, 155,760 E6,1E5,763 (5,571,457
Toral Adgers 5,080,844 831 4,937,910,554 5508574512
LIABILITIES AND ECLITY
LIABILITIES
(1] [Finantial Wabilivies
| [al |Derhative financialinstruments
() [Payables
{HTrude Payables
1) dues of miceo antergrizes and smal enterprises
11} duss of credizors other than micro entergeises and small enterprises
{10 Other Pavabies
I} dues of micen enterprises and smal enterprises
i} dues of craditors other than miceo enterprises and small enterprises
{c} Dbt Sacuritios
[d] (Berrowings [Other than Debt Sacurities] 10 946,477,076 1,140,943,601 1,202,222, 7659
f) [Depasits 11 34,424,935 31,327,275 28511412
1) Prubordinnted Liabikties
{g) |Cther financizl liakilties iz Gd41136 10,905,112 0,957,281
12} (on-Financal Liabilities
la) (Cureent 1ox Nabilties {MNet] 13 418,862,161 375,202 161 156,285,161
{a] [Peovisions 14 4 500 500 150,659,685 40,578,052
{ch (Deferred Lax labilites [Wet) 15 93,805,832 £4,395, 458 127,005 452
(d] (Gther norfinancialliabistics
{3} LE!IJJT'I"
LY s ity Share capital 16 7,H5E,12D 7370120 1270120
L E@lhﬂl Equity 3.505475,871 3,157,147,442 3636,639,258
Totak Llablfities and Equity 5,080,844 B31 4,937,910,854 5,508,574,512

Seir dCcampanying notes b the financlal statements

I terms of gur regort of ven date attached

For MANQDIA SANYAL & ASSOCIATES
Charered Accountants
Farn Regqistration No. 002538N

Pallay Kumar Vgish
Partapf

Membership Mo, 508751

Place! Gurugram
Date: 31072020

For and an behalf of the Board

Sunil Gauem
Wihcte Time Diresto:
DM - QE125576

Rajesh Gupa
Camipany Secrolary
F4ETD

Sdwita Jindal
Pirecior
QIM - DO42B740

Meup Kemar Mila
CFO
FAN - ACIHPZEGTA




SUDMHA APPARELS LIMITED

STATEMEMNT OF PRAFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH' 2020

For the yearended 315t

For the year ended 315t

Pasticulars Moti Ne. R A
8 |Reverue fror agerabions 4
il Jinterest Income 137,.B10,580 124,171,293
el Mt gair o fain value changes
[wif  |Met gain on derecognition of finandial instuments 7
under amertiied casl cAlEpady
[l |Sale of Mutual Fund Units 467,755,604 1,156,482, 145
[wiil)  |Sale of Investment
(g} |Cihers 1,050,000 9.607 594
Tokal Reveaue frem gperations BOGESE, 454 1,263,256,276
[y other lneeme
] Divigend ncome ] 20,135,856 14,044 247
1) |Rencal lacome 13%,7 3,500 133216460
| Total Revenue from other Income 159,862,786 152,264,107
1
) {Tetal Encedre (i} 766,519,270 1,421,517,383
Exponzos
i |Finanee Costs 15 56,834,687 VE,SRO.207 |
[iif  |Met leds o Fair walue elanges 0 3.097,360 2815983
fiij  |Mat legs en derecogrition ef finandial instruments undes amortised oot categony . k
tivd  |impalement on financial instruments - 1,759,106
vl |Cost of materisls cansumed
Wil [Purchases of Stock-inctrade 21 240,413,932 1372445173
i) [Changes in loventeries of finished goods, stock-n- trade and warkein: progress 22 2158024958 259,503, 828]
(vidi)  [Empioyee Senslits Evpenses 23 3,255,306 4,154,081
] |Copreciation, amorligalicn andimpairmegnt 2 HTTE G Z1ETIIAE
31 [Othess expenses (5o be specified] 24 2,758 7645 10,607,754
Contngent Provision sgaingt Standadd Asiars {30,975} 1,281,381
iV} | Total Expenses (1Y) 552,703,039 1,281,468,113
W (Prafa f (o] before exceational items and tax [191-14] 2113816,231 150,058,301
W) JExceptional itgms
2ravidian for Dimination In value of investment (3E057,314) A1z 460
Pravigban for hon Pesforming fdsels (207,100,870 107 09,870
| Wl |Profit{los) before b (VA1) 358,963,415 B1,336,441
[vill} |Tax Eapence:
al Cureent Tax A3, 600,000 42,500,000
b} |Deflerced Tax 7 3
€} Tan Adjustment for Earller Yesrs - 043,504
(et [Peofie 0 (loss]  for the perlod from continuing pperatians MGV
1] |Profayieds] from dissontinaed cporatisnd
(Hp (Fax Expense of discentinued cperations
(i) (Prolnfiiees] from discontinued - eparotionsafier tax) (0]
[N |[Profitdloss) for she period  {TGeX1) 315,363,415 37,992,452
¥V |@ther Camarehenshee Incame
1a][1i) 13ems 1hat will nat b ceclagsified 1o pralfit o lass 127,953 4580 (680,184.359)
(ii] kneearie bax relating to iteens that will not be reglassilied to profit or loas (T8 40475} 162,703,101
Total i 93,513,014 (517,454, 266])
(BT] uems that wdll b recl assilied to profid or logs
Change in fair value of equity Irstrumant
[} Income tax relating to items that will ke recassified w profivor loss
Tolal B . i
Cther Comprehensive Incarme [& + E] 93,543,014 {517,484,265)
(%] [Totsl Comprehensive Income for the pericd [XIHXIV] AQES06,429 [479,491 816]
(Wil [Eamings per equity share (fer eontinuing cpreations)
Baiic 5] 25 il -] 48,10
Diluted (R i5 39029 44,10
Soe accompnaylng netes ta the financlal statements
I Llerrns of our repart af ewen date altached
For MANDDIA SANYAL & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Beard
ChEnansd ALounants
Firn Rogsleation Mo COSI0EN
Falay Kumar valsh Surll Gavlam Eavila Jindel
Faarar Whole Tere Direcior Drecior
Membesship Mo, 538764 BN - 02126578 O - 00446740
Plate: Guragram Rayesh Gupla Arup Bumar dMitra
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2020

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Mar'2020 March'2019
Met Frofitf(Loss) before Extraordinary Items and Tax 213,816,231 190,059,271
Adjustments for:-
Dopreciation and amortisation 20,771,326 21,873,345
Intarest income
IMD A5 Adjustment 3.097.560 4,115,069
Dividend Received f Profit or Loss on redemption of Investments SE0,000
Less/(Profit) on transfer af land
Finance Cost
Contingent Provision for Standard Assets Written back {30,579} 1,281,331
Operating profit f(loss) before working capital changes
Changes in working capital :
Adjustrent for {increase )/decrease in operating assets
Trade Receivables and Othar Financial assers [91,531,030) 1406,2095,556)

Inventories 215,602,888 (259,602 888)
Adjustrment for increasef|{decrease) in operating labilities
Trade payable & other payahle {2,435,733) 1,014,303
Other financial liakilities
Provisions
Cash generated from Operations
Direct income taxipaid)frefunds 144,984, 10%) [47,983,790)
Net Cash flow from flused in) operating activities{4) 314,306,088 [494,589,915.00)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Ascots [53.770) {B34.840)
Leng term loan advances
Het proceads frem szlaf{purchase] of investments (219,457,730) [573,793,090)
sale of Investments
#ank deposit not cansidered as cash and cash equivalents {net)
Falr Value adjuttment of Financial Agsets
Interest Regeived
Met Cash flow from/f{used in] Investing Activities| B) (219,511,500) {574,427,930)
Cash Flow from Financing Actlvities
Froceeds from borrowings (including Ind AS adjustments) Z :
tet increasef(Decrease) in borrowings 194,466,525) [61,275,168)
Interest paid
{Met Cash Flow from flused in] Financing Activities { C) [94,466,525) (61,279,168)
{Met increase f{decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalents 328,063 {1,130,297,013)
[A+B4C)
|Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.432,673 1,132,529,602
‘Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year LEE0,742 2,232,679
iSee accompanying notes to the financial statements
{10 terms of gur repart of oven date attached
|
[Far KANDDIA SANYAL & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
tChonered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, (H8206M
Pallay Kumar Waish Sunil Gautam Savita Jindal
Partner Wihale Time Direclor Drirgctor

Mambershae Mo, 505751

Place: Gurugram
Date: 31.07.2020

DIN - 08125576

Rajesh Gupla
Company Sacretany
F48T0

Ok - 00445740

Arup Bumar Mara
CFO
PAM - ADHPM2E514
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1} Background

sudha Apparels Limited (‘the Company’) is registered as Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) as
defined under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (RBI). The Company is primarily a
holding company, holding investment in its subsidiaries, associates and other group companies. The
Company’s subsidiaries and associates are engaged in a wide array of business in the financial service
sector.

2) Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements
are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in
these financial statements and in preparing the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1,2018 for the
purpose of transition to Ind AS, unless otherwise indicated.

a) Statement of compliance with IND A3:

The Standalene Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
standards (hereinafter referred to as the “Ind-AS") as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015) and comply in all material aspects with their provisions.

The financial staterments up to year ended 315t March 2020 were preparad in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, Accounting Standards specified under Sectien 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies Act,
2013. These financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 are the first, the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind-AS. The transition from Previous GAAF to Ind AS has been accounted
for in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”, with April 1,
2019 being the transition date. Details of the exceptions and optional exemptions availed by the
Company and principal adjustments alang with related reconciliations are detailed in Note 26 {First-time
Adoptian).

b} Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost canvention with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind A5,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

¢} Reporting Presentation Currency:

&1l amounts in the standalone financial statements and notes therean have been presented in Indian
Rupees (INR] (reporting and primarily functional currency of the company).
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d] Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements:

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical exparience and ather factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results maydiffer from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Reévisions to
BCCOUnting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods
affected.

Due to the nature of the Company's operations, critical accounting estimates and judgements principally
relate to the:

e} Recoverahility of Trade Receivables

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of
the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that
can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be
reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclased in the
financial statements.

g) Property, plant and equipment:

an item of property, plant and egquipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property,
plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All
other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit
and lass as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of the replaced part is
derecognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having
different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items,

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost
includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and
lacation for its intended use. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as
part of cost of the gualifying assets.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
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On transition to Ind-As, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1" April 2019, measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment,

h) Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are capitalized where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits.
Expenses incurred on up gradation J/ enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they
bring similar significant additional benefits.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
owver their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carriad at
cost less accumulated impairment losses,

i) Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use, Depreciable amount for
assels is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value
Depreciation on property, plant and equipmenthas been provided on “Straight Line Method®
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis based on the useful life as
per Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, Freehold Land and construction in progress are not
depreciated. Leasehold lands are depreciated over the period of lease tenure. The estimated useful lives
of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. The estimated useful
lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are:

Estirated useful life of the tangible asset, based on the useful life as per Schedule || to the Companies
Act, 2013,

il Impairment of Assets:

fAssets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment |oss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds i13 recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets {cash-generating units).

Where an impairment [oss subsequently reverses, the carryingvalue of the asset (or cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does
not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset {(or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

k) Leases:

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as operating lease.
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a) Finance lease:
As alessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as Assets of the Company at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
carrespanding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in Statemeant of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which ¢ase they are capitalized,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

As alessor

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of minimum lease payments is
recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of
receivable is recognised as unearnad finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

b) Operating Leases
As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company, as lessee, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the 5tatement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless
another systematic basis is mare representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed,

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the excepted inflaticnary cost increases. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their nature,

1) Investment in subsidiaries and associates!
Investment in subsidiaries and associates are shown at cost. Where the carrying amount of an

investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it 15 written down immediately to its
recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Less, On dispesal of
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investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or
credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

m) Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisionsof the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair
value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
andfinancial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a metheod of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(i) Financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank halances consist of:

{a) Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash at bank and in hand, short term deposits and highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These balances with banks
are unresiricted for withdrawal and usage,

(b} Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for
withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCH):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business moedel whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect eantractual
cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the coatractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
gutstanding.
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The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by the
Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity
invastments.

Fair value through profit or loss:

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fzir value through other comprehensive incame is
carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive incame.

For trade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
Financial Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under
Ind AS 109,

(i) Financial liahilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue Costs.

Repurchase of the Company's awn equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company's own eguity instruments,

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair valuenet of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amartized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time valus

of money is significant.For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,
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De-recognition of financial liabilities:

The Company de- recognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled ar they expire.

iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are being offset and the net amount reported in the Financial Staterments
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

iv} Derivative financial instruments:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments i.e. Forward Contracts to hedge its risks associated
with foreign exchange fluctuations. These derivative financial instruments are used as risk management
tools only and not for speculative purposes. The fair values of these derivative financial instruments are
recognized as assets or liabilities at the balance sheet date and gain/loss is recognised in statement of
profit and lossunless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event
the timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge item,

n) Emplayee benefits:
(i) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shart term
employee benefits, Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of bonus, exgratia,
compensatory leave encashment, incentives are recognized in the period during which the employes
renders the related service,

(i} Post-Employment Benefits
a) Defined contribution plan:

This benefit includes contribution to provident fund and employee’'s state insurance scheme
administerad by government. Expenses are recagnized in the statement of profit and loss for the year in
which the employee has rendered services.

b} Defined Benefit Plan:

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method and the retirement benefit obligation (Liabilities) is recognized in the Balance Sheet net of fair
value of planned assets.Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur, The service costand net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/{asset) istreated as a net expense within employment caosts,
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o} Inventaries:

Units of Mutual Fund are valued at lower of cost (FIFO basis) or net realisable value.
p) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present oblization (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Fach provision is based on the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

q) Income taxes;

i} Currentincome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thase that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reparting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate,

i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purpose at reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A
deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable prafit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
ahd settle the lability simultaneausly,

iii) Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the
MAT credit becomes elizible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations
contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement
under Other Assets, The group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
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carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the
effect that group will pay narmal Income Tax during the specified period,

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferrad tax,
r) Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable excluding taxes

or duties collected on behalf of the government,

Interest income

Interest Incaome from a financial asset |s recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time hasis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Rent Incame

Income from operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit & Loss as per contractual rentals
uniess another systematic hasis is more representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from
the leased assets is diminished,

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have
been established.

s] Borrowing costs;

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assats,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial pericd of time to get ready for their intended use, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use_Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over the tenure of respective
lpans using effective interest methad.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

t) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A contingent liahility is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the
contingency dependent on uncertain future events, or a present obligation where no outflow is
probable. Major centingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of economic respurces 15 remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial
statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.
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u} Earnings Per Share;

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(i) Amendment to Existing issued Ind A%

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:
i. Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

i, Ind AS 40 - Investment Property

iii. Ind A5 12 - Income Taxes

iv. Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Jeint Ventures and

v.Ind AS 112 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's
Financial Statements,
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Annexure - |

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial com pany
As required in terms of paragraph |8 of (Non-Banking Financial Company — (Non-Systemically
Important Non= Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

(Rupees)

Particulars

(1)

Liabilities side:

interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures
Secured
Unsecured
{other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits*)

Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of | Amount Out-

standing

Armount
Cverdue

(b) Deferred Credits

{¢) Term Loans

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper

945 477,076

(k) Qther Loans (specify nature)
* Please see note 1 bhelow

Assets side:

Amount Qutstanding

(2) |1.Break-up of Loans and Advances including bill
receivable (other-than those included in (4) below):
{a) Secured -
(b}Unsecured 1.507,518.813
(3) | Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other

assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
Debtors :

(a) Financial Lease
(b) Operating Lease

(i)Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors:

(a) Assets on hire

[2) Fepossessed Assets
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(1) Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP aclivities

(a) Loans where assets have been re-possessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-up of Investments:

Current Investments,

1. Quoted:
Shares: (a) Equity
(b} Preference

Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds

Sovernment Securities
Others (please specify)

2. Ungquoted:
Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

Debentures and Bonds
Units of muiual funds

Government Securities
Others (please specify)

Long Term Investments:

1. Quoted:
Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

835,707 402

Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds

Government Securities
Others (please spacify)

2. Unguoted:
i. Shares. (a) Equity
(b) Preference

ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii.  Units of mutual funds
. Government Securities

v. Others (please specify)

139,569,648
185,050,000

oo7 882,800

.Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Pl oW

. Category Amount of net of provisions

1. Related Parties™ Secured | Unsecured | Total
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Subsidiaries
Companies in the same group
Other related parties

Total

Other than related parties

" Investors group-wise classifications of all Investments (cu
and securities (both quoted and ungquoted):
Please see note 3 below

rrent and long term) in shares

Category

Market “alue |/
Break-up or Fair
Yalue or MAN

Book Walue (Net of
Provisions)

Total

1. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies inthe same
{c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

2,220,484 701

1,828,319,850

2,220,484,701

1,826,319,850

=+ As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Please see Note 3)

Other Information

Farticulars

Amount

(i Gross Mon-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties

(b) Other then related parties

Net Non-Performing Assets
Related parties

Other then related parties

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debls
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1 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

[Partlculars 31-03-2020 31.03.200%] 01.04.2018]
]
|Cash in Hand 27,563 11763 94,353
Bl gngas with schadule Barks In Curenl Accdaunis 2,53 1 2,010 487 1,435,309
Total 1,560,742 2,732,679 | 1.529.,69%7
7 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN [A) ABDOVE
Particulars 31-03-2020 31.03.2019 01,08, 2018
Gularces with Banky
Fined Deposit with original maturity of more than three months : + 1, L30,000,000
Totall . ) 1,136, 000,000 |
3 RECEIVADLES
31-03-2020 31.03.2019 01,04.2018]
Trads Reqeivables 44,220,821 0,443,618 47 210,545 l
Tatal 44,220,321 0,243,618 AT, 235,849 ]
& LOANS
[ Particulars 11-403-2020 31.03.2019 01.04.200E
Share Applicaticn Mooey % 3 =
Intozesl Accroed 20,578 045 22,342 181 16015 BES
Logrs and Advancos 1,495,9%2 BT 1.B10 450 852 10BRasE 410
Advanca recovarable n cazh of in knd 7,516,526 8T8 415 B25E 375
Propad Exp. 104, T4S 78,282 T437
55T Repoverabln
Securly Dapost wilh NEDL
ECL an Lean & Advances 121,071.061] 111,071,061) [9,771,955)
Total 1,517,331,54E 1,539,577,719 | 1,11E 408 350
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G Inyentories

|Particulars 31-03-2020 231.05.2018 0)04,20148)
|atakin Trade - Units of Mutus! Fund 42,000,000 250002598
Total 44,000,000 250,602,688 =

P OANCONE TAK ASSETS {WET)

CParticulars 31.05.2020 35.03.201% 01.049.2018

;.l'l.li'.larlce Imeame Tas [Induding tax dedutad st 5uur:¢::| 443,351,152
|Blal Cradn Enldemeatiulizanion)

20 IET 043 IFE.EGA 24l

Total 447,251,152 A0z, 167,043 ITE BG4, 242
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NOTE B. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For financial year 2019-20

SUGHA APPARELS LIMITED

Gross Carrying Amount

Accumulated Depreciation

Met Carrying Amount

Mature of Fixed Asscts T As at April Additions Deletions As at As at April Forthe |Deletions As at As at As at
1st, 2019 March 1st,2019 year March March March
Jist, 2020 Jst, 2020 31s1,2020 3=t 2018
Tanaible
Land - Gurgaon 31,768,200 39,768,200 - - - 3,768,200 31.768.200
Land - Hissar 893 861, 803 3,061,803 - - = 93,961,803 03,861,803
Building - Gurgaon 32077016 320770186 16,354 780 760,956 17,115,745 14,961,270 15, 722226
Building - Kolkata 6305 558 6,305 558 2,197 958 201683 2,385 551 3,905,807 4,507,520
Lift 1,885,997 1,805 997 1,801,197 - 1,801,197 94,800 Q4 800
Office Equipments 538,764 G35, To4 207,042 . 207,042 431,722 434,722
Computer 125,265 53,770 179,055 63,055 25497 88,552 90,503 BZ,230
Solzar Power Panal 1.518.060 1,518,050 288,325 97 824 586,148 931,901 1,028,725
Furmitura & Fixtures 70,016 270,016 153,828 168,634 322 462 47.554 2156188
Toal = 168,660,683 53,770 - 168,714,459 21,266,205 1,254,584 - 22,520,799 146,193,660 147,394 484
Investment property
FY 2019-20
Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation Met Carrying Amount
Mature of Fixed Assets As at April Additions Deletions As at As at April For the  |Deletions As at As at As at
1st, 2019 March 15t 2019 year March March March
Mst, 2020 1=t 2020 31st, 2020 I1s0,2019
Tanglble
Builging - Gurgaan 24827 394 24,827,304 12 663 497 HE3474 13,247 472 11,579,523 12,168,847
Land - Kalkata Mall-Rented 214,396,652 214,356,852 .| 214,396,852 | 2143096852
Builging - Kolkata Mall-Rented £02 145,673 582 145673 | 205851624 | 15927758 225,679 382 366,566,291 385 404 049
Lift - Lat aut partion 1467 480 1,487 488 1,384,115 . 1,284 115 73,374 T3.374
Total ; 832,837 408 % - BIZBIFA08 | 220,704,236 19,516,732 - 240,220 568 592.616,440 B12. 133172
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For financial yvear 2015-19

Gross Carnying Amount Accumulated Deprociation Mot Carrying Amount
Mature of Fixed Assels As at April Additions Delations As at Mg at April For the Adjustmeanis As at As at Ax at
1zt 2018 March 182018 year fdelations March March March
3152019 st 2019 32019 st 2018
Tangible
Land - Gurgaon 31,768 200 31,768,200 - - - 31,768,200 31,768,200
Land - Hiszar 93 961,803 4% 961,803 - - " 93,961,803 03,8681 803
Building - Gurgaon 32,077 016 - - 32,077,015 15,555,131 TO9.659 o] 16,354,790 15,722,226 16,521,885
Bulding - Kolkata 6,305,558 6,305,558 1,955871 2120487 2197 958 4,107,590 4519687
Lift 1,885 997 - - 1,895 0497 1,801,197 . 0 1.801,1497 94,800 a4 800
Office Equipments G8,924 578 B4 BB, 754 55,932 150,140 207 042 431,722 2092
Computer G9,285 &6, 000 125285 58419 4636 63,055 62,230 10,866
Solar Power Panel 1,518,060 1,518,050 380,232 108,003 458 325 1,029,725 1,137 818
Furniture & Fixtures aA¥0.016 370016 78,107 74,721 153,628 216,188 290,909
Total : 168,025,849 634,840 - 168,660,689 19,916,889 1,349,316 o 21,266,205 147,394,484 148,108 960
Investment property
FY 2018-13
Gross Carrying Amaunt Accumulated Deprociation Mot Carrying Amount
Mature of Fixed Assets Ag at Aprl Additions Deletions Az at As at Aol For the Adjustments s at As at Az at
154,2018 March 15,2018 year fdeletions March March March
J1st, 2019 315t,2079 51,2009 3151,.2018
Tangibie
Bullding - Gurgann 24,827 394 24,827 354 12.039,566 618931 12.658. 497 12,168,897 12,787,828
Land - Kalkata Mall-Rented 214,365 452 244 396,852 - 214,396,852 214,396 852
Building - Kolkata Mall-Rented BGF 145 673 U2 145673 | 185746526 | 12905058 206.851.624 385,494 048 405,399,147
Lift - Let aut portion 1,467, 488 1,467,488 1.354.115 - 1,324,115 73,374 73,374
Total : 832,837,408 - ~ 832,837,408 | 200,180,207 | 20,524,029 - 220,704,236 612,133,472 632,657,201
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5 OTHER NOM-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fartiodlars LU0 31.03.2015 .04, 20158
Capag! Advances 4,282 387 (+,987, 357 64,08 38T
Socuity Dopost 1,203 383 1203 382 585,070

Tatal 65,185,769 B6, 185,769 65,571,457

10 E-q\_rruwlngj [Qghar than Debt Securities)

Particulars 31.03. 920 31.03.2015 0104 2018

{8) In India

ALamartisen eogt:

Fram dadies Corporate (Repayable on demand) QAEATTATE 1,1-:{?,9&3,5{}1% 1,202,222,769
946,477,076 1,140.943.601 | 1. 202.232.769

{8} Outside indla ' -

Tatal {A+B) Q4E.4T7,0TE 160,943,600 1,202, 222,769

Que of above

Setured

Mnseuroed QL0477 076 1140943 EQ1 1,202,223, 769

11 DEPOSITS
Particulars 31032020 31.03.3019 OL.04.2018
Leculty Deposilt S7.E02.561 57802563 57, B0 563
Less - Ind A5 adjustrnent F13TTEIR 26AT75. 188 19151151

TQII_I F1.4214,935 35327375 $3.511.417

12 OTHER FINANCIAL LIASILITIES

Partiulars 31.03.2020 31.03.301% 01,04.2018
J;ﬂl:hc-l Lintniliries 9,441,136 10,505 182 0aG7 EL
|Onher Fayshles

Taral 0,441,136 10,905,112 4,967,281

L3 CRMHREMNT TaxX LLABILITIES (MET)

Fartinulars 31.03.2020 35.03.201% 014K, 201E|
Frawsian e Inceme Tax 418,862,161 AT5,E02, 101 156, 28%, 161
Total 418,462,101 375,262,161 356,289,161

L4 PADWVISIONS
Partioulary 31.03.2020 31,03.201% 0104 2018!
Emgplayer Benefits L91.262 1,565 055 L A97 613 |
Prowisan o Mon Peonmneg Asiats . 107, 102870 .

Il'r-:w.sﬂn for DHenulion (s value af lnvastmenl . 15,037 314 36,424,354 E
|Camtingert peandsion for standord asgets 1912437 39434105 LG 0a5 |
Total 4,509,659 150,653 635 40,578,052 |

15 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

!Paftkulﬂ-rj As at 31032020 Tax effect for | As at 31.03.2019 | Tax effect for | Asab 01042018
s e the period the peried

(O ferrad Tax Lisbility

(For Deprecistion difference as por books and [ Tax Agt

Und A5 Irepact on fai value sl imeesimat 53,805 832 120,410.475) 64,355, 358] 162,700,101 27,095 455

:-Dn:hm:ed Tax Adtatd

ICarry borwerd Long Tenm Capital Lass

| Disaligwance undar Section 43-8 of | Tay Act

IMet Deferred Tax AssetsS[Liabilities) E3.EDREIZ]  |28410475) 4,355, 358] 152,700,101 237,095,453

i



16

SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

STATERMEMT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH® 20240

&, SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Shares Amount in Rs.
Particulars AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
34.03.2020 31,03.2019 0E.04. 2013 A5 AT 31.03.2020 [ AS AT 31.03.201% |  01.04.2013
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
Eauitvabarer of By, 10 each
At the beginning of the pierigd TI7 3 T2 727,012 7,270,410 T2 2370420
Al Additons during the petiod b2 00 . - A28 00
Leras: Reduction duwing the perdod - - - - -
At ihe end of the period TE3.812 Ti.012 727,012 858,100 7,270,120 7,270,120 |
ISEUED SURSCRIBED AND PAID UP
Equity Shares of Rs, 10 gach
At the beginning of the pericd 101z AroL2 0z 7,270,020 ER e ] 37040
Lachd: Additiond dusing the ppr'uud &2 B0 . LB, 000 . «
Leds: Aeduction duaring the period - . ' 4 ¥ »
At the end of the pericd | TEDH1Z T012 727,012 7898120 7,270,120 7,270,120 |
Details ¢l equity shares in the company held by each shireholder hedding more than 5% of tharesis a5 under: .
Paiieulant Humber of shares held % haoldlng |
31.03,2020 31.03.2000 31.04.2018 31.03.2020 31.03 2015 01043018
Eguwity Shares of 10 each
1. lindal Global Finance & InvestmentLid . 107416 107416 10746 14,77 14,77 14,77
2. Hakt Dealoam tad 35,761 35,753 35.761 4,52 %92 492
3. Pushpanjal Inyestrade Aot Led. 48,000 0,000 0,000 1241 B52 4963
A Dharsm Pl lindal 55,900 63,500 G3.000 92.61 8,61 561
S Tawita findal 106,662 106,553 105,662 14.61 14,57 14,67
6, Laket findz 70,0040 10,000 000 963 9,63 2.43
¢ Haghaw Jindal 145,123 145,123 145,123 19.96 19,95 19,96
A GVN Fuel Limited 50,400 35,000 35,000 &35 4,55 £45 |
B, OTHEA EQUITY
[ Items of othor
Reseryes and sueplus camprehensive
Partlouliang IFecin h:‘qlu?:;m
Capital Em:u:_‘ul',' Statutory General li.e't,ul_nnd T R
Reserve Pramium Reserve Roserve Earnings
Dpening balance 51,581,458 : 531875200 | 2745557 | 1,851,099,363 2.527,305.660
Frofisfiass {ar the periad - - 73502826 367.514,130 - 448 048,055
Transfer during the year (71,502, 828) (73,502,826}
Char comprehansive income . . va1.E19,468 721,8159.468
Balange a5 of 01,04, 2018 Ind A5 51,581,458 . E05,331,026 B2,745,557 2,155,110, k63 T4LE19,458 3,636,639, 258
1
Balznce as on 01042018 51,551,998 i E5,351,026 82,748,597 2,155,110,663 T41,519,4163 3,636,639,255
ProfitfLoss for the period 421,600 AT552,452 Ab,a14,052
Transler during the year {8, 421,600 {621, 680
Cither comprehensive income {517,484, 768) {517,484, 26E)
Balance as of 31032019 Ind A% 51,581,498 613502626 | STTI6,597 2,184,681,531 224,135,200 3,157,147 4492
§U|:-qmnr_h.1ltn|:n L1, 581,498 613,802 676 A2, 15,597 2.IB4 681521 F34,335, 205 3,157 140443
FPegfitfLass for the period 1618,000) 315,353 415 314,735,435
]1r'=ﬁ5.f¢1 during the year B3,073,000 - 63,002,000
Transher during the year -
Sratueony Reserye (B3,003,000) [53,003.000]
Teansfel durag e year -
Genaral Reserva
her campiehensve Moome 93,543,004 71,543,014
Balance 35 on 31.03.2020 51,581,408 B ATS.61E B2 18597 [ 24369719318 317,804,218 3,565,425, 471

T



17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

For the year ended 315t

by d 31st March'201%
Particulors March'2020 For the year ended 31st Marc
Interest on Intercorparate Loan 28,0559 664 79,410,119
INTEREST DN BOND 459,741 216 45,761,164
Sale of Mutual Fund Units 467,795 604 1,130,452,145

| Total

305,606,484

1,258,653,432

18 OTHER INCOME

Partieulars

For the year cnded 31st

For the year ended 315t March'201%

March 2020
Cividend 20,129,886 14,044,247
Rent Received 139,732,500 138,216,860
Frofit on sale of property {net) 4247419
Frofit on sale of Current Investmeants net)
Agrichure Reni 1,050,000 350,000
Lizbility writben back - 5,425
Miscellaneaus Income
Total 160,912,786 161,863,951
19 FINAMNCE COSTS
For the year ended 315t For the year ended 31st
Particulars March'2020 March'2019
Hiterest on Intercorporate Loan B, 90,5468 16,578,702
|Interest - On Others
Sank Charges 42,341 1,505
Total 56,834,687 76,580,207

23 Metloss on fair value changes

For the vear ended 31st

- i
Marticulars March'2020 For the year endad 315t fdarch’'2019
Lass on fair value of Investments 3,097,560 £,815.8603

i Total 3,097,560 2,815,963

71 PURCHASE OF STOCK iM TRADE

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

22

March' 2020 March' 2019
Purchases £40,813,982 1,374,449,175
Tatal 240,413,982 1,372,449,173
Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in- trade and work-in- progress
: For the year ended 315t |

Tarticulars March'2020 For the year ended 31st March'201%9
lHem - buatual Fund Units

Dpening 5tock 255,602,588

Less - Closing Stock 44,000,004 259,602,888
| Decrease/{Increase) in Stock in Trade 215,602,858 (259,602,888)

23 ENPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSE

For the year ended 31st

Particulars March'2020 For the year ended 315t March'2019
Salaries , Wages, sllowances and Bonus 3,167 670 408 281
Sraff Welfare 87636 134,800
|
| Total 3,255,306.00 4,154,081.00

13




24 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars For th ; ﬁ; 1;_ ':J i E d3ist For the year ended 315t March'2019
L P. Charges 3,155 JZ.B2 1
Rent 87.500 47,500
fBates & Taxes 154,221 3,254,594
TSR Exponses 00,000 1,000,000
Fostage & Telephone £3 6562 129,245
Frinting & Stationery 6,420 £ 1a7
Fee B Subscription 50,100 28,200
Travelling - Directar -
Travelling & Conveyance 462 335 474,473
Insurance 253,313 170,078
Repair & Maintenance-Building . 1,845,203
Repair & Maintenance-Others 263 BEE 715759
Legal & Professional Charges 505,153 1,495 440
Irnsestment Wiittan Off 95,600
Internal Audit Fee 11,500 3,280
dcdvertisement & Publicity G5 4TE 38,024
fuditors' Remuneralion
- Audit Fea &8.500 BE.500
« Tax Audit Fes 16,520
- Cortificaton / olhers Sernces 23,600
tiscellaneous Expenses 236,048 125,452
Lass on sale of Invesiment = Met Ga0,000
Total 2,768,269 10,607,794 |

75 EARNING PER SHARE (EP5)

Sasic aarnings per share is computed using the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share
are computed wsing the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive pate ntial egquity shares putstanding during the year =

Particulars

Asin Lakhs

For the year ended 315t

Far the year ended 315t March'2019

March' 2020
Basic f Dilutive Earnings Per Share
Profit after tax as per profit & loss account 315 383,415 37,992,452
{Weighted Average number of equity shares F89,812 F27.01%
Rasic and cliluted earnings per share 399.28 4810

74



26 Recancillationsaf Balance Sheet a5 per previows GAAR and [nd AS

A3 al 31st March 2018 A5 At ALt April Z0LE
Fartiulars Kot | Previaus GAGE | Adjusiment Imd A5 Frovviows GAAR | Adjuzimon Ind A
ASSETS
{11 |Financial fxiens
L#) | Cash and cash equivalenty A3 k61 2,311,437 23326714 %1 363 2435309 2,519,852
o} |Bank Brance ather than (a} above 2 104LT j2.21E4LT) e E132 405 0% [ 1, 130,000,000
(0] | Dsivarree limencial mstrumenss - - - - . .
It | FBrdea bias
il Trace Recevabies 30443618 - AT LS L7 120840 - LR oL
i) Cibker Recelvables ' . - - . -
let |Leans L 550,648,780 (1071063 L533572709 | L6, 180305 [9,771.455)  L1I5.808.350
11 |IFwestments VR0 RED N2D 269,215 BEY §ATEOYR LA 1 0kE a15 030 45 256 a7 138t 814751
! g |Eiher Financal assets
(2] |MWomdlsanzlal Assets
[#] [Iremanpeias 259,607 8RS - JazE07 22y - - -
I [Corrart tax pedets (Mel) 401 24T 041 - 402 260 043 EREN =R - 3PEESA 242
| (r] |Cofarcedtay Assecs [Mat] i 5 . i
[ah [Inyestrent Progerly £11.133,173 - 612,L33, 872 E3LEST, 201 ' E32,657,201
v} [Ensdagical asests aiber shan bearer planis - - - i . z
| [} Pooperty, Plant and Equicment 247,094 S04 - 147,394 424 148, 105360 - A48, L0890
g} [Capital wark-n-progress . - a - b
| h) |Intangibie pysels under deyeitament & = . .
(if |Gocdwil - - - . a
| Uk [Guhar inia ngln akroks . ' -
(t} |Ctner non-financial assets BE/ 185,755 - 55,185,769 65,571,457 ‘ ES5T1A5T
| Teral Assens | 4, 679,770,553 50,040,301 | 4037 01RES | 4568050016 SIG LY PIE | 5500574517
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIASILITIES
18] (Flnancial Uabilltles
{al IDesyvatees finzncial tnstromends E
(1 Papakled
| nliTrage Pavablas
I} duer al micro enlerprises and seral enlerpeizes
I i} gues of crediors other than mice erierpoisy g nd grgd
| TR
1] Dtheer Mayalbles
| Ipeues of migrs arverprises and wmal entererises
lij ot al creaitors afher Thas micid arlerpraes and smil
ErUErprisas
e} 1=k Secorities
(0] |Porrowings (ke han Deli Secuiities) £l LAa00a3 6l & 1048949 801 1.202,221.769 . 1,203, 23%. 765
(o |Deposics 57,808,563 (26475, 158, 31317375 57802568 §25,591,151) 18511412
1] |Faberdnaned Linbisigy i & e f '
wek [Other Bnarcal abililes 10905,112 - 15,505,203 R 5 . 4947251
¥ [Men-Flransial Linkbies
1) |Current tax lzbilities [hat) 375,257,161 - 375,762,161 356,280,161 3GE 185,161
(B[ Prgvisicns VEOERRERS B 150659645 %0,573.052 v 0579050
e} | Defarred tax kakiltags [Mgt) k] ‘ ' - s
i [Ogher man-linaraal habdites B4, 1585 352 55335 38y = 227005 459 227005 3548
I3} |[EQuiTy
la] |Emlty Bare capital ANy = T.270,120 120 . LI
ikt |Saher Equity 2,936,587,311 230,735,131 3,157, 347442 2,538,819, 790 FA1ELGAET | 3,635,628.258
Tatal Labifiles and Eculiy 4,679, 770,553 258,140,301 |  4,937,910.854| 4,558,950,736 930,623,705 [ 5,508,504,512

* Pt the purpede of showve discbosane, figuses Tor the previcun GAAT have baer reclaiailied s confiorm peesenestion sequircmate under Ind A% sad dhe requirements Lud down
iy Chvasion D1 20 the Schedisle 0 of the Compamies Act 2013

15




Farteulnrs

Foo the period 01042018 to 31.03.201%

Mute Frewious GARP | Adlustment Ead A5
=ovoroun From operations
b1 |interes: incamie 126,174 283 - 19 1T 2ER
] | Svidend Inpame La 040,247 . L4, 0ed 247
[l (Rentd Income 133,216,850 = 133,115860
1] |Fess amd Commission Income - - -
el | Sesgainan fir value eharges . 5 "
Iw3] |[Medgein onderecognitan of Hrandial instrumantsandid afnamaed Lo CAegary - " -
win] | fade ol productafreluding Eugise Sutyh 1,130,897 189 - 1,130 48% 143
v [3ate gE serviges ¥ N .
(] PEERErs (10 ba gpeilieg) 9,607, B2 . 0,602,8%4
Iy fresal Revenue from oparations 1431557223 WSL261,107) | 3,069,255 27E
L1y [Ctner Income (ko ke spacified) -
(] {Tetatlegome La1) LALLSIT ST [152.261,107)]  1,340,25,076
Frpares o
fii {Finance Costs TE580 K1Y - JE GRS 2GT
4iiy ftest loz= anfair valus dhangss - 2 &155463 1515553
il [fen lpas an ceresagnition of financiel instoumenis undar arartised poak category . "
[#d [irnpeinens on fnancal instauments L L5108 1,259,196
i) |Costod materials consumed - - -
[wiil |Purchazesaf Slock-in-srads 1372449173 B 1.372,449,173
vaiil) (Chamges inlrwertorissod Frished goads, stock-in- trade oncwork-n- progress [359 203 2E8) - {255 602 SREY
%) [Ermplogen Eenelies Erpaniey 8,151 081 ' o, 155 081
[x) [Cepeecipticn, amonitatcn and spalnreant 2LETE45 1 21,873,315
[l bz veperaet (L be 2pecifiod) 10807 784 . L0, GO s
Conbingent Provision agains: Standard Assets 4281331 - 1,284 3971
(NS | Tatal Sapenzss (V] 1,227,343,043 4, 115069 | 1.231,458,112
) (Profiny flossh befare eccepienat items and e (180V) 917340 | (156376176} 37,798,164
| (41 [ EncopRionst ibprg = L -
i Fronsion for Biminidsza in yaloe of invesfrrent 1611960 - 112960
Prontian for lon Perfar ming Assels 107,109,870 - 107,158
108, TE2 830 : 104,772,630
[l || Profefsoss) belore 12 (W V1) A5A45L 510 (156,376,176) [T0,924,566]
{Wined | Tax Caparae!
ap {Currert Tax 42,500 000 - L3 500,000
a1 |Deleteed Tax H 5 - Ead uEs
o] e A5 Tax adjuttiments : r ¥
) |Brafa f (1282)  for the period from contauing eperatensvi-Ya) 42,107,528 | |AS63TEATE] | (LL8,25EE55)
(¥ |Frafafioce) froen glsoentinsed opacations ' . .
b (Tak Eagenie ol ddcantaued operatons . . .
[ (et ailloie) frse dadanisied  spetatianadadoes caujs=ai) . '
ARl Prafitflosskfo the ceriod  {I6+X11) AL,107.521 11563760761 | [104.258.655)
V) [Qrher Comgrehangive Inggme L E -
iad ({1 emns 1hat will pag e reclassifed to proficar loss - |60, 184,363) {E8D, 184, 26E)
() Imzeime 2o relating to ems that will nat be reslasstad 10 prafie o kg . 162,700,501 162,700,101
- (217,434, 168) LEIT A58, 265]
4t b fems vhat will be reclazs fied do prolit or bass - = -
Change i fair valun of oquity Instrument - - -
ik ingamE T3 ralaning 1o items that will be raclasefied ta prafit ar foss B _ B
Qeler Comareheanve [nesme (A - 1) - 1510 A4 260) (517 AR JGRE
| 1| |Yatal Camarehensive Income far Lhe peried (KK 42,107,521 (673, 880444) [53L,752,923%

* Fon e pozposs ol abave duclvurg, Gigures far the previous SGAAP Tave bean roclassifesd 1ococonform presestation smquirensots usder Tnd AS andl the iogquifemenia Linl dawn
o Drvrseom 10 1o he Sehedule T of the Comganies Ac 2013,

Eaplaratory Nores 1o First Time Adoptlon are as follows:
1 Forlsssileation: The svints and Rabiliies o2 af dpeil 1, 2006 S3un Eand e graiped [/ op-glasyilmd, wharevmr Aroeisary 10 (oM with accownting pofes of fhe Campany under Ind A5

VTS Firanelal Agsens: Under iadian GAAR, long term inseitmprss pguity thases were acoounred as Inasoment measuzad ascost bess provision far acher chan temparary diminuslon in ke
value of itestmants Uncer [nd A5, sueh inyestvsnts have Deen dedlgneted as FUTCS) bvestments. Ind &5 regaires BWTOD investments fo be measured at fair value, The diffsrence
bobweon the incirument’s fair valie ard Indan GAAP carrying amaunt has been redagnived a3 2 separobeddmeanent < eaily, i Lbe FYTGC) redirng, nel of Telated vefireed taves,

3 Fvrey shortderm investments: Under 1nd A%, fnvestments in mutual funds are wafued ot faer value and such fair walue dilferences az oo the date ol transition and lor the comparative
periods are recognized Inothe statement of Profit srd Loss Aeccanl (FYTPL). Unsder indisn GAAR, the Camparry reparts the vahue ol such ineestments gt oast of Nel Reeiiable Walse

whitkever was beaamn,

4 Redesmable piefeianis (hap1 daued by the Compary heve been clawsified as barrawangs asd recapnired a3 amortised cast an dransitan data az againit part of fquity thare capzal gadar
of evdug GAAP, The @farencs o0 The TRArdTian 4a1e nas tpen recopnded in opening retared sarmings Interest chargs at efective inlerest rate on such borowings has been recognized as

findnce dont i e e T N B,

5 Tak mpast moludes deleried tax mpact, wheéraver § pplicabie as por prosslons of nel &5 L2 (Inaors Tandt), o accsunt of Jiffenence bawaen proviewt GAAR prd Ind A%,

& Uncer | NDAS, Remeascrements Le, actuaml gaing and losaes anc the returfn an plan assets, enclumag amounts incleded i the e nieret oxpense on shi net defingd bbby, 3t serognized
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Hotes forming part of the Financial Statements

Income Tax expenses recognised in Staterment of Profit & Loss Account

Partleular Year Ended 31.03,2020 Year Ended 31.03.2019
Current Tax 43,600,000 42,500,000
Deferred Tax [29,410,475) 162,700,101
Earlier Years - B3, 089
TotalIncome tax expenses recognlsed 14,189,525 206,044,000

Particular Year Ended 31.03.2020 | Year Ended 33033019
Profit Before Tax 358,063,415 £1,336,441
Applicable Tax Rate 0.25 0.3t
Computed Tax Expenses 29,740,854 22467 754
Tax effect of:
Expenses Disallowed net off Exempted Income {46, 140, 854] 14,876,235
Additional allowanee net of MAT Credit - .
Current Tax Provisions [A) 43,000,000 43,343,983
Incremental Deterred Tax Labilities an account of Tangible & Intangible Assels - ’
fneremental Deferred Tax Assets on account of Financial Assets and Other tems {29,410,475) 162,700,101
Ceferred Tax Provision [B) {29,410,475) 162,700,101
Tax Expenses recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+8) 14,189,525 200, D, 020
Effectlve Tax Rate 004 253
felated Party Disclosure a5 per Ind AS 24
aj Narme of Key B ErE0
wir BLR, Garg - Wheletime Direcior up 1o 10.05, 2019
wir. Sunil Gautam - Whaletime Director wee.f.01.06.2019
M Arup Kumar Mitra - CFO
fir. Rajesh Gupld - Company Secietary
Related Partics with whom Transaction have taken place during the Year
Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.20149
Remuneration
Key Manzgement Personnal 3,380,321 2,663,985
Enterprise where control exist
Subsiciary
Crishpark Wincom Limited {65.885%) up to 14022020
c} Other Related Parties with whom Transactions have taken place during the Year
Assaciate Company
Kushagra infrastructure Pt Limited
Other Related Concern/Party
Smit, Savita lingdal {Director)
Transacactions with Related Party during the year
Loan to Assoddate Company (closing balance) 7,109,870 7,108,570
Lean to Subsidiary Company (closing balance) - 270980, 164
Paymient ta Other Related Party | Smt. Savita lindal)
a. Rent Faid 87,500 47 500
b, Cther Services 97,500 07,500
Managerial Remuneration - Mr. MR, Garg - Whaletime Director
hr. MR Garg - Wheletime Director up to 10.05,2019 1,533,810 1,291,600
mir. Sunil Gautam - Wholstime Director from 050562019 623,230 -
Interest income from Subsidiary, Assotiate & Other related party - 24,814,263

{ Mo interest is pravided on loan to Associated Company for being NP&]

25 5




9

9.1

92

283

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT ACCOUNTED FOR

Income Tax Demand under Appeal

AN 2005-2010 F.¥. 2008-2009 453,410 453410
AN 2013-2014 FY. H12-2013 380,280 330,230
Tatal 233,690 233,680

In respect of Bank Guarantee issued by Indusind Bank Limited (previously by
Eatok Mahindra Bank Limited } In favour of Mew Town Electric Supply
Company Limited 13,684,350 13,684,350

SERVICE TAX LIABILITY

Thie Company has not provided for its Service Tax liability on "Reating of Immovable Property” to some tenants for the period from
Dcteber, 2010 to September, 2011 amounting to Bs. 76,3543/ which has been disputed by thate tenants through their zssociation
belore Honb'le Supreme Court, of which 50% of the arrear dues amounting to Rs, 38,17 716/ has been directly deposited by these
terantswith the Service Tax Autharity under the direction from the Apex Court and for the balance 50% of Service Tax dues, the linal
adjudication of the Apex Court is awaited, The Company, however, holds written commitrnent from such tenants for ceimbursement
of all liabilities arising due Lo nan-payment of Service Tax by the Company.

7€
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GRATUITY

The Empioyees Gratuity Fund scheme managed by LIC of India |s a defined bensiit plan. The present value of cbligation i determised based an
actuarizi valuation Using the projected unit cradi meshod, which recognises each pesiod of sendce a4 gleing rse 10 additional vait of emaloyee

beaefit eriitlement and measures each unit separately 1o build vp the final abfiga tion.
Diseloser for defened plins baied an actuarnial repari§:

Changes bn thi Prisent Valus of Gbligatian

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20
Present Value of Obligation as at the baginning - 1,350,475
Current Service Cost . 9,811
Interest Bxpercie or Cost . 90,653
Agmicagurement jor Actuarial] (gain] f loss ariding 1from; 1 a
change in femog aphéz assumplions - 0
changein finznciz! assumpiang - i}
expirience variania (Le Aclual experiencevt nssumptions] - <188,237
others * ju]
Paph Seavice Cost ' o
Eftocy of change in loreign exchange ratas - o}
Berelils Pald - 938,273
Aciistion Adjustment . o
Effact of business combinations or disgazaly - a
Present Walee of Obligation s at the end 264,439
Biturcation af Present Value of Obligation attheend of the year as por revisod Schedule 1l of the Companios Act, 2013
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20
Current Liabéfity [3host term) - EGES
Medi-Cuerent Llabilivy {Long tarm] . 57454
Prgsant Valug of Obligation . 254,438
Changes in the Fair Walee of Plan Assois
Partloulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20
Falr Walue of Plam Assets as at the beglnning - -
Invastment incsemag .
Emplaoyer's Contribution = =
Employee's Cantnbution . .
Benelits Paid
Return an glan assets  axcluding amount racognised In net interest expense -
Acgulation Adjuiiment
Fair Value of Plan Assets a5 at the end 2 2
Change inthe Effect of Asset Ceiling
Particulars IL-Mar=19 31=htar-20
Effect af Asset Celling at the beginning = -
Interest BEapense or Codt (to the extent nod vecognised in net interell eapense .
Re-rmeaiurement (or Aetuarial) (gain)loss arizsing because of chanpe in effzct of asse
ceiling - .
Effoct of Asset Ceillng at the end . =
Expenses Recognised In the Income Statement
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20
Curfent Sovvice Cost . 33811
Pt Service Com : .
Less f [Galnh oo settlement £ -
Met Interest Cost / {Ineeme] on the Net Defined Benelit Liability f {Asset) - SLE6S
Expinies Recognised in the Income Statemeant B 130,474
Diher Comprehensive Income
Fartlculars 31-Mor-13 31-Mar 10
fctwanal (g2ns| / losses 3 s
change In demograghic assumptions + L
change in fimancial assumiptiang -
experience variange (i Artual experignce vi assumptions) - -188 23700
hers
Return an plas assets, excluding amoaunt recognised in net nterest expense .
Ite-imeasuremant [or Actiarkal] (galn/loss arsing because of change in effect of agset
teiling .
Components of deflned benelil costs recoenlsed In sther comprehenslve Intama x -LEE,237.00




307 Major categorics of Plan Astets [ns parcentoge of Total Plan Assets)
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Particulars

31-Mar-14

3i=-har-2]

Gowvernment of India securities
State Gavernment secusilies
High quality carparate bonds
Equity shares of Ested companies
Fraperty

Special Depesit Schome

Furids managed by Inturer

gank balanpe

Zher veitmienss

Tetal

Senaithity analysic

Lignificent actuarkal assumptions for the detemination of the deflned obligatian are discount rote, expected salary Increase and moortalbity,

Particulars E1-PAar-19 11-Mar-20
Defined Berefil Obligation |Bise] 1,360,475 4,438
3i-24ar-19 31-fae-20

Farticulars Dacreass Incrazasae Derreass Increase
Disoount Rate |-/ + 15%) + = 402, 424 331,168
(% change compared 10 Dase due Lo sengitivity) - L] 100a% 8100
SHary Growth Rate (- £ + 1%) - - 333324 402,673
{4 change compared 12 base due 1o sensitivity) E - .40 10.50%
Attriticn Rate [- £+ 508 of atbrition rates) 1 - R 356,557
% change compared 1o base due Lo sensitivity) E . . B i
hiartality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) - - 364,168 g4, 710
% chinge compared 1o bate due 10 sensltivily] - - -0.10% a.10%

Fease nple that the sensithity analysls presented shave may nel be regresentative od she actual changes In the defined benefiy abligation as it is unlikely that

There i nachange in the mathed of valustion for the price pediod. Far change in assumptions glease rafed to cection 5 abawe, whare ALEEPLENG fest priae

riaturity Prafile af Delined Gerefle Obligation

Wieighted average duration (based on discourted cashilews)
Expectad cash {laws aver tha next [valued onundiscounted baslsh:
1year

2to 5 years

G40 10years
Ware than 10 yvears

g0

10 Yeard
Indian Aupees [INR)

6505

3052
£15,635
498,355
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Motes forming part of the Financial Statemonts

MOTES OM CARITAL ADVANECE

Capial Advances of Fls 64,902 387/ (Provicas Year Rs. 64,582, 387/} undar Nate no: - & represent advAnces made 1o vancus parlies

iLecalirgncultanst) for purchases of vanous plots of land at differest lecaticns in tha siate of Mehareshtra an behalf of the Gompany for ineestment
purpese. Altnaugh the company halds ceginal title deeds in respect of all such larnd purchased by hese parbes & laken pessassion of tha land
prepertias, the final conveyance infavour of company is perding due to reslaclions imposed by the lecal aulhodties. Suitable appropristan of such capilal

advancas wiukd ba made upon axeculion of conveyance dasdefselllament of accounts with all these pariss vpon disposal of the sams

SEGMENT RERCRTING

The Cempeny has this year identified two reportabla grimery Business Segment on the basis of risk & return invalved, which ara iinancieng & Invasimant

&nd Renting of Propsmy

Seament Revenue, Fesults & ether informalian

Finarce &
Farticulars Imsastmant Ranbing &f Property Oihars Tolal

Irezairne frarm operasions 605,606,484 . . 605,606,494
{1, 273887 670 [} (5,602 B4} {1.983,300.543)

Char operaling neoms 21,174,846 139,732,200 - 160,512,736
-1 [838,216.660) {138,216, 860)

Segmenl Results 626,788,370 139,732,200 - TEE519,270
11,273 657 670) {138 246.680) qg,EuEIE,E-Hh 19.421.517.383)

Finanga cost GE.E34.687 - - B6.B34,687
(TH.580,207) i1 ) [78.580.307)

Orlher expendiiung 465,087,026 20,771,326 - 485,868,352
[1.126.871.161) (£3.891.655) {=) [1.150.7&2 836)

Profit ! {Loss) before Tax 94 854,857 118,561,574 - 213,816,241
(70,245 291} (114,325 205) (9,602 ,844) {1584,174,240)

Segment Assels 4,444 007 570 536,837,281 - 5.050.644,821
[3.610.238,786] (5594, 269 GLE) I (4, 504 608 382)

Segment Lizhility 1,448,712,276 £7,803,553 - 1,507,920,839
{1,302 508,305) (57 802 581) {1 [1,360.310,261)

Capilal employed 2,994,355 204 579,028,698 - 3,573,323, 9092
{3,307,750,538) (546 46T 043} {= (2,944,197 431}

%l
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Falr Value Measuremeanis

Financial instruments by category

Carrying value JFair value

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

As at
01 April 2018

Fiman<ial assets
Fimanclal assets measured at Falr valug
IMYREEMmants |'|:I.‘i|-$.|..|l'l..',"d at

i Fair value through QCHinvestreent in Equity Sharas 2,220,434.701 1,878,073 482 1,985,414, 7581
Financial assets measured at amertised cost

Gther non-current financlal assets

Trade receivables

Cach and cash equivalents 2,580,742 2230678 2,529,652
Bank balances ather than above - - 1,130,000,000
Other current finandial assets - Loan & Advances 1,517,331,546 1,539,577,719 1,118 408,350
Tatal financial assets £ ?dﬂ,3?$:$$9 3419, 883,880 4,236,352,803
Financlal labilitices

Financial liabilitias measured at fairvalue

Carivatives - TD:’EIQ-‘L eethange forward. conteacts

Financial liabilitios measured at amortised cost

ROn-Curent Borrowings ¥ 546,477,076 1,140,943 601 1,202,222,759
Current borrowings - - -

Trade payables - - -

Other eursent financial liakilities 9,441,136 10,505,112 9,857,231
Total financial liabilitles 555,918,212 1,151 B48, 713 1,212 190,050

# including current maturities of lang term debt

Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explaing the judgemants amd astimates made in determining 1he Tair valuas of the financial instrements .To provide an indicztion
abeut thie reliatlity of the laputs used in determining Faie valug, the Company has elassified its financlal instruments into the Shree levels

prescribed undar the accounting standard.

A5 at 31 March 2020

Lewal 1 Lawel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Flnanclal assets measured at Falr value
i) Mea Cursent Investmenl in Equity 355,634,772 1,1311,807,128 L A67,441,501
il} Current investment e dutuzl Fund - - -
Total financial assets 355,634,772 1L,111.807.129 - 1,467441,901
Financial llabilities
Financial liabilitles measured at fair value
Total financial liabilities - - -

Ais at 31 March 2019

Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asscts
Fimanclal assets measured at Falr value
1} Mon Current Investment in Equity B2 GRLO53 352,617,389 - 1,177 245 482
H) Current Investmant in Mutual Fund E -
Tokal financial assets 824,681,083 352,617,388 = 1,177,288 482

Financinl liabilitics
Financlal liabilities measured at fair value

Total financial liabilities




(i

Vialvation technique used to determing falr vialue

2)The Tair value of investment in quoted equity shares is measured at guoted price. The Net Assel valug of share arrived has begn considered as
the fair value of investment in ungueled equily shares.

b)The fair value of Forward Foreign Exchange contracts is determined using abservatle forward exchange rates.

c)The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash eguivalents and other bank balances, cther linancial assets {eeoept derivative
financial instruments) trade payebles, 2nd cther fingncial liabilities (except derivative financial instruments) are considered to be the sams a5
thelr falr values, due to thelr shom-tarm nature.

dlloans haws fzir values that approximate 1o thelr carrylng amounss a5 it 5 based on the nat present value of the anticipated future cash flows
wilng rates currently available for dabt on similar terms, cradit rick and remaining maturities,

el foreign currency denominated assets and liabitias are transfated using exchange rate at raporting date.

fiManagement uses its best Judgement in estimating the falr value of its financlal instruments, However, thera ara Iinherent lmitations in any
estimation techmgue, Therefare, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair velue estirmates presented above are not nacessarily
indicative of the amounts that the Company could bave realised or paid In sale transactions as of respective dates. s such, falr valye of
fimancital instruments subsequant to the reporting dates may be different frem the amounts reported at each reporting date.

£] There have been no transfers between Level £ and Level 2 far the years ended darch 31, 2019 and March 31, 204B.

Disclosure of loan [ advances and investments in 115 own shares pursuant to Regufation 53 of the Securlties and Exchange Board of India |
Usting Obligations And Disclosure Regelrments] Regulations, 2015,

Particulars Cutstanding Balance Maximum Batange Quislanding

31.03.20%0 31002019 2018-2020 20182018

i Lesns and aovances n the natuse of kans to Subsidlagies & - - 5

i} Loans and advances in the nature of logns 1o 3ss00iales TA05.8T0 71108870 709 870 7,108,870

i} Lozns and afvancesin the nature of loans to firms f
companies imwhich directors are interasted - - . :

Ho, of shares Amount in Rs,

® Inwestment by Ioanin the shares of parent company and
subsidsary comgany, whea the company has mzde alaan ar
advance In the nature of loan. . - - ;

&3
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Notes Ferming part of the Financial Statements
RESERWVE BANK OF INDIA REGISTERED NG NG FINA mARANY

The company isregisterd with Beserve Bank of India as Non Banking Finance Company Vide Registration
Mo - 0502275 dtd 16.05.1998 and has been complying with prudential Norms prescribed by REBL

Additional particulars as required under (Non-Banking Financial Company ={Mon-Systemically Impartant Non- Depasit
taking Company (Reserve Bank)Directions, 2016 are attached, under Separate Annexure -|

The Company has alletted 62,800 equity sharos of R, 104 each to Non-Promaoter £ Public Shareholders as bonus shares on Lst
January, 2020. Listing appresal far the samo (s pending with Caleutts Steck Exchange.

Company holds 150 Bonds of Yes Bank for Rs. 152,685 000/ In prosent scenario the value of Bands is nil. The halders of Yos Bank
Bonds, approched to Apex Courtand placed 3 propasel ta Yes Bank 2ands are converted in 1o Eguity Shares in ratio of 1 Bomsd: 19551
equity shares of Rs. 2 éach with lecking pericd of 3 years, The decision is pending in Apex Court.

Based on information svallable with the campany, there are no dues owed by the company te Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise,
which are culstanding for more than 45 days during the year and a5 at 315t March® 2019, A5 3 result, na inberest provision/ paymenis
have been made by the Company to such Creditors, and no disclosure theraf is reguired under Micra Enterprises Development Act,
20085,

The retirement benefit of the employees of Lhe company |5 recognised on payment basis as & when arised.

Previous years figures have boen regrouped [ rearrangad whers ever necessany.

The Accompanying Motes form an integral part of the Financial Statements,

As per our regart of even date attached

For KANODIA SANYAL B ALRSOCIATES For & on Behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, DOB3SGN

Eallay Kumar Vaith Sunil Gautam Savita lindal
Fartnes ‘Whale Time Director Director
Membership No, 508751 DIl - DE1255TG DM - 00449740
Place: Gurugram Rajesh Gupta Arup Kumar Mitra
Date: 31.07.2020 Company Secneiany CRO

F4ETO BN - AQHPIMZEGRIA
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SUDHA APPARELS LIMITED

CIN: L17289WB1981PLC033331
Registered Office: 2/5 Sarat Bose Road, Sukh Sagar,
Flat No.8A, 8" Floor, Kolkata-700 020, Phone: 033-30522053
Website; hitp:///www.sudhaapparels.com Email secretanal@sudhaapparals.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that 38" Annual General Meeting of Sudha Apparels Limited will be held on
Monday, the 28" September, 2020 at 3.00 P.M. through Video conferencing/Other Audio Visual means
(VT OAVM) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the (a) Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31% March, 2020 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon and (b) the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2020 together
with the Report of Auditors thereon and in this regard to pass the following resolution as
ordinary resolution(s):

(a) "RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31* March, 2020 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon
be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) "RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31* March, 2020 together with the Reports of Auditors thereon
be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Savita Jindal, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment and in this regard to pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Smt. Savita Jindal (DIN 00449740), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the
Company.”

To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to pass
the following resolution as an erdinary resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 138 and other applicable
provisians, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), M/s. Kanodia Sanyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN D08326N),
be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion
of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 44" Annual General Meeting of
the Company, at such remuneration as shall be fixed from year to year by the Board of
Directors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Toconsider and if thought fit, to pass the following resclution as an ordinary resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related party transaction(s)
with Pushpanjali Investrade Private Ltd. for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement to the Motice.”
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5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resclution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related party transaction(s)
with Gautam Fin-Invest Private Ltd, for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanatory
Staternent to the Notice”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirernents) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related party transaction(s)
with Sigma Infrastructure Private Ltd. for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement to the Notice.”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company, be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for related party transaction(s)
with Crishpark Vincom Ltd. for providing Loan, as detailed in the Explanatory Statement to
the Notice.”

By Order of the Board
For Sudha Apparels Limited

Place: Gurgaon RAJESH GUPTA
Dated: 24" August, 2020 Company Secretary
NOTES:

1

Cansidering the present COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) has vide its
circular dated 5th May, 2020 read together with circulars dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th Apnl, 2020
{collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General Meeting ("AGM” /
“Meeting") through Video Conferancing ("WGC7) or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM'), without the
physical presence of the members at a common venue, In accordance with the MCA Circulars,
pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time ("SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM
of the Company is bging held through VC/QAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the
Fegistered Office of the Company.

In terms of MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of members has besn dispensed with, the
facility of appointment of Proxies by Members will not be available. Hence the Proxy Form, Attendance
Slip and Route map are not annexed o this Notice.

Members attending the AGM through WC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckening the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

The VCIOAVM facility for members to join the meeting, shall be kept open 15 minutes before the start of
the ACM and shall be closed on expiry of 15 minutes after start of the AGM. Members can altend the
AGM through VCIOAWM by following the instructions mentioned in this notice.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Gircular dated 12" May, 2020, Notice of the AGM along
with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whase
emall addresses are registered with the Company (RTANDepositories. Members may note that the
Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the website of the Company at
www.sudhaapparels.com, website of the Stock Exchanges ie. Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
www . cse-india.com and on the website of CDSL www evotingindia.cam.
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Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of special
business which are unavoidable in nature 15 annexed hereto.

As per Requlation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, securities of listed companies can be transferred
enly in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, excepl in case of fransmission or
transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
ease of portfolic management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company's
Registrar and Transfer Agent, Alankit Assignments Ltd. for assistance in this regard In case of joint
holders attending the meeting, the person who is first in order of names recorded in the Register of
Members will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

Cetails under Regulation 38(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Secretanal Standards (53-2)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Direclors seeking
appointmentre-appoiniment at the Annual General Meeting forms integral part of the Motice. The
Directors have furnished the requisite declarations/Disclosure for their Appointmentire-appointment.

All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be available for inspection
by the Members at the registered office of the Company on all working days ie. except Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays between 11.00 AM. and 1.00 P.M. up to AGM. Such documents will alse
be available electronically for inspection by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice upto
AGM on the basis of the request being sent on secretarial@sudhaapparels.com.

Pursuant to MCA Circular and Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder,
the companies are allowed fo send communication to shareholders electronically. Therafare, the
Members are requested to register/update their e-mail address with the Company's Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent, Alankit Assignments Ltd at da@alankit.com or their respective Depositary Participants
as the case may be, for receiving all communication including Annual Reparts, Motices, Circulars, etc,
from the Company electronically.

CorporatefInstitutional Members are required to send a scanned cerified true copy of the Board
Resolution/Authority Letter, etc,, autharizing their representative to aftend the AGM through VT / OAVM
on their behalf and to vote through remate e-voting or during the AGM. The said Resolution/Autharisation
shall be sent to the Scrutimzer by email (hrough itz registered emaill address al
amadelhi1 2@amail. com with a copy marked to evoting@ecdsl.co.in, if they have voted from individual
Tab and not uploaded the same in the COSL e-voling system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Act, 2013, Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested
under Section 189 of the Act, 2013 will be made available electronically for inspection by Members of the
Company during the AGM on the basis of the request being sent on secretarial@sudhaapparels com,

. Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to MCA Circular and Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the
Company is pleased to provide the facility of 'remate e-veling and WC/OAVM through Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL), for all members of the Company to enable them to cast their votes
electronically, on the resclutions mentioned in the notice of the 39" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of
the Company.

The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may allend the meeting, but
shall nat be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM and a person who is not a Member as on cut-off
date i.e. 21 September, 2020 should treat this Notice for information purpose only.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the Paid-up Equity Share
Capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e, 21% September, 2020.

br. Ajit Kumar Mishra (FC5-8703), Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as Scrutinizer for

providing facility to the Members of the Company 1o scrutinize the voling precess in a fair and transparent
manner.
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The Scrutinizer shall submit his report, o the Chairman, within 48 hours from the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the
website of the Company Le. www.sudhaapparels.com and shall simultanesusly be communicated to the
Stock Exchange

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

(i

i
{iir)
(iv)

V)
(vi)

(vil)

The remote e-voting period begins on 25" September, 2020 (9.00 A.M) and ends on 27" September,
2020 (5.00 P.M). During this peried shargholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 21* September, 2020 may cast their vote
glectronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
The shareholders should Iog on 1o the e-voting website www avatingindia com,
Click en “Shareholders! Members” module.
Mow Enter your User 1D
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL; 8 Character DP |D followed by & Digits Client 1D,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Mumber registered with the
Company.
OR
Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASIEASIEST e-services, you can log-in at
wiww cdslindia.com from Login-Myeasi using your login credentials, Once you successfully
log-in to CDSL'S EASIEASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to
cast your vote electronically.
Mext enter the Image Verification as displayad and Click an Login,
If you are holding shares in demat form and had lagged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier e-voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used,
If you are a first lime user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
FAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Depariment (Applicable
for both dermat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
« Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depasitory
I Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by the Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA,
| Dividerid Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/iyyyy format) as recorded in
Bank Details | your demat account or in the Company recerds in order o login. |
OFR Date of « |f both the delails are not recorded with the depository or Company please
Birth (DOB) enter member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned |

in instruction (iv)

{viii)

(1)

(%}

(i)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, Shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation” menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field, Kindly
nate that this password is to be alsc used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that the Company opts for e-vating through
COSL platferm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other persen and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EWSHN for Sudha Apparels Limited on which you choose to vote.
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(xiiy ©On the voling page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution,

{xii)  Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details,

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, ¢lick on "SUBMIT", A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK', else to change your vote. click on
"CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

{xvi Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to madify your vote

{xvi) You can also take a print of the vates cast by clicking on “Click here to print” Option on the Vating
page.

ixvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed login password then Enter the User |D and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password and enter the details as prompted by the
system.

{(xviii) Sharsholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app ‘m-Voting'. The m-voting app can be
downloaded from respective Store, Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app
while voting on your mobile.

{xix} Mote for Non — Individual Sharehclders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} and Custodian are required to
lag on to www evatingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

Scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and signature of the entity should be e-
mailed to the helpdesk evoting@edslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password, The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote,

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custadian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

Alternatively Non-Individual Sharehelders are required to send the relevant Board resolution/Autharity
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised signatory who are
authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company, if voted from individual tab and nol upload
the same in the COSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same,

Process for Shareholders whose e-mail addresses are not registered for obtaining login credentials
for e-voting for the resclutions proposed in this Motice

For shareholders holding shares in physical form — Please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self- attested scanned copy of PAN
Card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar card) by e-mail to secretarial@sudhaapparels.com or
rta@alankit.com,

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat form — Please provide Demat account details (CDSL - 16 digit
beneficiary 1D or NSOL — 16 digit DPID + CLIENT 1D}, Mame, Client Master or copy of Consolidated Account
Statement, PAN (self-attested scanned capy of PAN Card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadnar
card) by e-mail to secretarizl@sudhaapparels com or ta@alankit.com.

The Company and RTA shall co-erdinate with CDSL and provide the login credential to the above mentioned
shareholders.

Procedure for Joining the AGM through VCIOAVM:

1. Shareholders will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through YC/OAWM through the CDEL
e-\oting system. Shareholders may access the same at www.evotingindia.com under
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sharehclders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAYVM will be
available in shareholders/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

?. Sharehalders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.
Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

3. Please note that Participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Lapiop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective
nebwork, It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches,

4. Shareholders attending the AGM through YC/OAVM shail be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act,

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request up to 217 September, 2020, mentioning their name,
demat account number/falio number, email id, mobile number on secrstarial@sudhagpparels com,
Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only e allowed to express
their viewslask questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number
of questions and number of speakers, depending on the availability of time as appropriate for smooth
conduct of the AGM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for Remote e-voling,

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VCIOAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resclutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the voles
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the mesting
is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voling will be eligible to attend the AGHN
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting (both for remate e-voting and e-voting at AGM),
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
waw_evotingindia,com, under help seclion or write an email to helodesk evoting@cdslindia,com or
contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi (022-23058542),

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, {CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Fleor,
Marathon Fulurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Jashi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013
or send an amail to helpdesk evoting@ecdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER REGULATION 36 (5) of SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

Item Mo, 3

The Board of Directors at the Board Meeting held on October 15, 2019 has appointed M/s. Kancdia
Sanyal & Assaciates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN 008396N) as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 139(8), M/s. Kanodia Sanyal & Asscciates, Charlered Accountants
were appointad as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 20" December, 2019 to hold office with effect from 15" October, 2019 till the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.
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Mfs. Kanodia Sanyal & Associates would be completing their tenure at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. Pursuant with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Audit and Auditars)
Rules, 2014, Mis. Kanodia Sanyal & Associates are eligible for appointment for a term of 5 years.

Proposed Fees for Statutory Audit:

Rs T8 000-125000 per annum plus applicable taxes, and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in
connection with the Statutory Audit of the Company. The proposed fee is based on time and &fforts
required to be put in by M/s. Kanodia Sanyal & Associates.

The Audit Committee of the Board has recommended the appeointment of Mis. Kaneodia Sanyal &
Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of § years. The credentials of Mis. Kanodia
Sanyal & Associates are as under:

Credentials

Mis Kanodia Sanyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, is established by Mr. RK. Kanodia in the
year 1974 is ranked among top 100 Audit Firms in India. It is a mulli-disciplinary organisation providing
services in different spheres of Due Diligence, Financial Investigations, Audit & Assurance, Cerification,
Direct and Indirect Taxation, Finance, Management and Corporate Advisory Services (hroughout India
and in some other countries.

Mone of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in any way concernad or
interested, financially or athenvise in the resolution.

The Board recornmends the resclution as set out in the [tem No. 3 of this notice for your approval.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

Item No. 4:

During the year ended 31 March, 2020, the Company has entered into material related party
transactions, as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited and in compliance thereof, shareholders’ approval
is being sought herein. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions, which were
in the ordinary caurse of business and at arm's length basis, placed before it.

The particulars of transaction are as under-

(a) Name of the Related Party- Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited.

(o) Name of the Director or Key Managerial personnel, who is related, if any-
Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Director

(c) Nature of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director's relative is & member of
Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited.

(d) Nature of transaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of transaction- Matenal
terms and Particulars of the transactions:

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company has provided loan amounting to Rs.
5032 lakhs (Maximum amount outstanding) to Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited for
general corporate purposes.

(e) Any other information relevant for the members to make a decision on the transaction- None

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in any way
concernad or interested. financially or otherwise, in the said resolution except Shri Mangat Ram
Garg, and his relativels being member of Pushpanjali Investrade Private Limited.

The Board recommends the resolutions as set out in item No. 4 of the Notice for your approval.



Itern No. 5:

During the year ended 31" March, 2020, the Company has entered into material related party
transactions, as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited and in compliance thereof, shareholders™ approval is
being sought herein. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions, which were in
the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, placed before it.

The particulars of transaction are as under-

(a} Name of the Related Party- Gautam Fin-invest Private Limited.

(b) Name of the Director or Key Managerial personnel, who is related, if any-
Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Director

{c) Nature of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director and his relative are
members in Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited

(¢) Nature of transaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of transaction- Material
terms and Particulars of the transactions:

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company has provided loans amounting to Rs.
2007 lakhs (Maximum amount outstanding) to Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited for general
corporate purposes.

{e) Any other information relevant for the members to make a decision on the transaction- None

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Companyitheir relatives are, in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution except Shri Mangat Ram
Garg and his relative/s being member of Gautam Fin-Invest Private Limited.

The Board recommends the resolutions as set out in item No. 5 of the Notice for your appraval.

Item No. 6:

During the year ended 31* March, 2019, the Company has entered into material related party
transactions, as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited and in compliance thereof, shareholders approval is
being sought herein. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions, which were in
the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis, placed before it.

The particulars of transaction are as under-

(a) Name of the Related Party- Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited.

(b) Name of the Director or Key Managerial personnel, wha is related, if any-
Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director

{¢) Nature of relationship- Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Whole Time Director is a Member in Sigma
Infrastructure Private Limited.

(d) Nature of transaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of transaction- Material
terms and Particulars of the transactions:
During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company has provided loans amounting to
Rs. 706 lakhs (Maximum amount outstanding) to Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited for
general corporate purposes.

(e} Any other information relevant for the members to make a decision on the transaction- Nong

None of the DirectorsiKey Managerial Personnel of the Companyitheir relatives are, in any way
concerned ot interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution except Shri Mangat Ram
Garg and his relatives being member of Sigma Infrastructure Private Limited.

The Board recommends the resolutions as set out in item No. & of the Notice for your approval.
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ltem No. 7:

Ouring the year ended 31% March, 2020, the Company has entered into material related party
transactions, as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with Crishpark Vincom Limited and in compliance thereof, shareholders' approval is being
sought hersin. The Audit Committee has approved Related Party Transactions, which were in the
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis, placed before it.

The particulars of transaction are as under-

(a) Name of the Related Party- Crishpark Wincom Limited.

(b) Mame of the Director or Key Managerial personnel, who is related, if any-
Mr. Mangat Ram Garg, Director is a Director in Crishpark Vincom Limited

(c) Mature of relationship- Crishpark Vincom Limited is a Subsidiary of the Company.

(d) Mature of transaction, material terms, monetary value and particulars of transaction- Material
terms and Particulars of the transactions:
During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company has provided loans amounting to Rs.
2710 lakhs (Maximum amount outstanding) to Crishpark Vincom Limited for general corporate
purpases.

{g) Any other information relevant for the members to make a decision on the transaction- None

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Persennel of the Companyltheir relatives are, in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution except Shri Mangat Ram
Garg, who is Director of Crishpark Vincom Limited.

The Board recommends the resolutions as set out in item No. 7 of the Notice for your approval.

By Order of the Board
For Sudha Apparels Limited

Place: Gurgaon RAJESH GUPTA
Dated: 24" August, 2020 Company Secretary

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meoeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI {(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 read with Secretarial Standards (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretarles of India.

Name of the Director smt. Savita Jindal
Age 63 Years
Qualification Graduate
| Brief Profile Expertise in specific functional | Prominent business-women  having |
area - wise business experience
Terms and conditions of Re-appointment Smt. Savita Jindal is liable to retire by

rotation at ferthcaming Annual
General Meeting
Remuneration last drawn (including sitting Nil

fees, i any
Date of first appointment an the Board 30.12.2005
Shareholding in the Company as on March | 1,086,662
31, 2020
Inter-se relationship with other Directars Mone
Mo. of meetings of the Board attended Flease refer Corporate Governance
during the financial year (2019-20) Report
Directorship of other Companies as on 31" | Nil
_March, 2020
Chairman/ Member of Committee of other il
_Companies
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